## Erie County Court of Common Pleas Domestic Relations Division



# Local Rules of Court

Judge Roger E. Binette Judge Robert C. DeLamatre Judge Tygh M. Tone

> Published January 5, 2007 Enacted January 5, 2007

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

RULE 1	JURISDICTION OF THE COURT	1
RULE 2	COURT COSTS AND DEPOSITS	1
110 22 2	A. Costs Deposit	
	B. Additional Deposits	
	C. Affidavit of Indigency for Court Costs	
RULE 3	COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE AND OHIO LAW	1
RULE 4	REQUIREMENTS FOR COUNSEL OF RECORD AND PRO SE LITIGANTS	
	A. Registration with Ohio Supreme Court	
	B. Out of State Attorneys	2
	C. Written Appearance of Counsel	
	D. Withdrawal of Counsel of Record	
	E. Pro Se Litigants	4
RULE 5	APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL	3
RULE 6	PLEADINGS – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	2
KULLU	A. Paper Size	a
	B. Margins	
	C. Captions of Pleadings	
	D. Space for Time Stamp	
	E. Attorney and Party Information	4
	F. Pleading Requirements	
	G. Delivery of Pleadings for Filing	4
	H. Copies of Pleadings	4
RULE 7	POSTING OF NOTICES FOR SERVICE BY PUBLICATION	4
DILLEO	MACIETO ATEC	
RULE 8	MAGISTRATES	
	A. Magistrate's Authority  B. Magistrates Hearings and Decisions	
	C. Final Decree Following Magistrate's Decision.	
	D. Approval Signature Line for Magistrate	
	E. Objection to Magistrate's Decision and Motion to Set Aside Magistrate's Order	5
	F. Waiver of Objections to Magistrate's Decision	<i>6</i>
	G. Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law	
RULE 9	GENERAL HEARING REQUIREMENTS	
	A. Exhibits	
	B. Trial Briefs	
	C. Dress Code	
	D. Cell Phones, Cameraphones, Pagers, and Similar Devices	6

RULE 10	CASE PROCEDURE FOR INITIAL ACTIONS	7
	A. Divorce, Annulment, and Legal Separation Actions	7
	B. Dissolution of Marriage Actions	
	C. Civil and Domestic Violence Proceedings	9
	D. Support Actions before Acknowledgment is Final	9
	E. Support Only Actions	.10
	F. Complaint for Allocation of Parental Rights and Responsibilities or Parenting	
	Time/Visitation	
	G. Complaint to Establish Parent and Child Relationship	.11
RULE 11	CONTEMPT AND POST DECREE MOTIONS	.11
	A. Contempt Motions	.11
	B. Post-Decree Motions	
RULE 12	FOREIGN DECREES	.13
	A. Foreign Support Orders	.13
	B. Foreign Parenting Decrees	.14
RULE 13	SOLE OR SPLIT ALLOCATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS AND ESPONSIBILITIES	
	BY AGREEMENT	
	A. Mandatory Pleadings	
	B. Mandatory Language in Judgment Entry	
	C. Hearing on Motion to Reallocate Parental Rights and Responsibilities	16
RULE 14	SHARED PARENTING PLANS AND DECREES	
	A. Modification of Prior Sole/Split Parental Rights Order to Shared Parenting	
	B. Modification of Prior Shared Parenting Plan and Decree	
	C. Mandatory Requirements for Shared Parenting Plans	
	D. Mandatory Language in Shared Parenting Decree	
	E. Hearing Regarding Shared Parenting	.18
RULE 15	AGREED POST-DECREE MODIFICATIONS OF PROPERTY DIVISION AWARDS	.19
RULE 16	TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY BY JUDGMENT ENTRY	.19
RULE 17	CASE MANAGEMENT AND PRETRIAL CONFERENCES	.20
	A. When Held	.20
	B. Purpose	.20
	C. Case Management Conference	
	D. Final Pretrial Conference	.21
	E. Counsel	.22
	F. Stipulations	.22
	G. Discovery Issues	.22
	H. Sanctions	.22
	I. Pretrial Motions	.22
RULE 18	CONTINUANCES	
	A. Motion for Continuance	
	B. Proposed Judgment Entry	.23

RULE 19	JOURNALIZATION OF ENTRIES	
	A. Cases Settled Prior to Hearing	
	B. Cases Settled at Hearing	
	C. Signatures Required	
	D. Counsel Responsible for Preparing Judgment Entry	
	E. Time for Preparations/Transmittal of Judgment Entry	
	F. Time for Approval by Opposing Counsel	
	G. Failure to Comply with this Rule	
	H. Magistrate's Orders	
RULE 20	PARENTAGE AND SUPPORT TIME LIMITS	
RULE 21	PATERNITY TESTING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT	25
	A. When Testing is Required	
	B. Acknowledgment of Paternity	
	C. Order for Testing.	
	D. Required Forms to Obtain Testing.	25
RULE 22	APPRAISERS AND VALUATION OF PROPERTY	
	A. Appraisers	
	B. Valuation of Assets and Determination of Liabilities	26
RULE 23	EX PARTE ORDERS	
	A. Judgment Entry of Injunctions.	
	B. Ex Parte Order for Parental Rights and Responsibilities	
	C. General Requirements for all <i>Ex Parte</i> Motions	27
RULE 24	STANDARD PARENTING TIME ORDER	
	A. General Guidelines	
	B. Schedule for Parenting Time	
	C. Miscellaneous Parenting Time Issues	31
RULE 25	MEDIATION	
	A. Policy of the Court	
	B. Scope of Mediation	
	C. Hearings during Mediation	
	D. Mediation Procedure	
	E. Qualification of Mediators	
	F. Confidentiality	37
RULE 26	HOME INVESTIGATIONS	
	A. Policy of the Court	
	B. Request for Home Investigation	
	C. Cost of any Payment for Home Investigation	
	D. Report of Home Investigator	
	E. Testimony of Home Investigator	

<b>RULE 27</b>	GUARDIANS AD LITEMS	38
	A. Policy of the Court	38
	B. Notices to Guardian Ad Litems	38
	C. Deposit for and Payment of Fees	38
	D. Statement of Fees	38
	E. Reports of Guardian Ad Litem	39
	F. Duties of Guardian Ad Litem	39
RULE 28	PARENTING AND CHILDREN'S SEMINARS	40
	A. Parenting Seminar	40
	B. Children's Seminar	41
RULE 29	HEALTH EXPENSE	41
	A. Computation of Health Care Order	41
RULE 30	SUPPORT ORDERS	
	A. Mandatory Support Language in Judgment Entries	
	B. Child Support Computation Worksheet	
	C. Deviations for Guidelines Computation Worksheets	
	D. Support Obligations for Shared Parenting Plans and Decrees	
RULE 31	IN CAMERA INTERVIEWS WITH MINOR CHILDREN	
	A. Request for Interview	
	B. Persons Present during Interview	
	C. Record of the Interview	42
RULE 32	ATTORNEY FEES	
	A. Child Support and Parenting Time Contempt Actions	
	B. Award of Attorney Fees Pursuant to ORC §3105.18(H)	42
RULE 33	CIVIL PROTECTION ORDER MODIFICATION AND DISMISSAL	
	A. Policy of the Court	
	B. Motion to Modify Civil Protection Order	
	C. Motion to Dismiss Requested by Petitioner	44
APPEND	X A: FORMS AVAILABLE ON THE COURT'S WEBSITE	
APPEND	IX B: COST DEPOSITS – SCHEDULE A	46

## **Rule 1: JURISDICTION OF THE COURT**

Pursuant to O.R.C. Section 2301.03, the Judges of the Court are designated as the Judges of the Erie County Court of Common Pleas, Domestic Relations Division. The Judges of the Court have all of the powers relating all domestic relations cases, except those which are assigned to some other Judge of the Court of Common Pleas for some special reason. It is necessary to clarify the court clerks where actions are to be filed. The following types of actions shall be filed in the Domestic Relations Division of this Court, and all pleadings concerning said actions shall be delivered to the Clerk of Court at 323 Columbus Avenue, 1st Floor, Sandusky, Ohio, except as otherwise provided in this rule:

- 1. All domestic relations actions (including civil domestic violence protection actions);
- 2. Relief from Judgment actions pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3119.96 et. Seq.; and
- **3.** Administrative appeals from orders entered by the Erie County Child Support Enforcement Agency (CSEA).

## **Rule 2: COURT COSTS AND DEPOSITS**

- A. COST DEPOSIT: Any party filing an action or claim in this court, except civil protection order cases, shall deposit court costs at the time the pleadings are filed, unless the filing party is not required by law or Court Order to make such deposit. The Erie County Clerk of Courts shall publish a schedule of court costs as and all deposits shall be made in the amount specified in that Schedule. A copy of this schedule effective as of the date of these rules is attached hereto and incorporated herein as Cost Schedule A. Said Schedule may be adjusted from time to time and incorporated into these rules by amendment. The Clerk of Courts may refuse to file a party's pleadings if a cost deposit in the proper amount is not tendered with the pleadings.
- **B. ADDITIONAL DEPOSITS:** The court, in its discretion, may require additional deposits toward court costs.
- C. AFFIDAVIT OF INDIGENCY FOR COURT COSTS: The Erie County Clerk of Courts shall accept any pleadings filed without a court cost deposit, if an Affidavit of Indigency for Court Costs (D.R. Form 1.00 in the Appendix) is submitted with the pleadings. The filing of an Affidavit of Indigency for Court Costs does not relieve a party from liability for court costs. Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent the Court from requiring any other party to the action to make a sufficient deposit for costs, or from assessing costs to any party.

## Rule 3: COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE AND OHIO LAW

Unless otherwise provided under these Rules of Court, all documents filed with the Court shall comply, in form and content, with these Rules of Court, the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure and Ohio Law. If there is a conflict between these Rules and the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure, the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure shall control. Regardless of any reference to a statute of the State of Ohio in these Rules, all documents filed with the Court shall comply with the existing Ohio law.

## Rule 4: REQUIREMENTS FOR COUNSEL OF RECORD AND PRO SE LITIGANTS

- **A. REGISTRATION:** All Ohio attorneys practicing before this Court shall be registered with the Ohio Supreme Court and licensed in good standing.
- **B. OUT-OF-STATE ATTORNEYS:** Any attorney who is admitted to the practice of law in another state, but not in Ohio, is not permitted to enter an appearance in any case before the Court unless first granted leave to do so by the Court.
- **C. WRITTEN APPEARANCE OF COUNSEL:** Any qualified attorney retained in any case in this Court shall promptly enter a written appearance in the case, as counsel of record. No attorney shall appear at a hearing, on behalf of a party, unless that attorney has first entered his or her written appearance as counsel of record for that party, unless otherwise authorized by the Court.
- **D. WITHDRAWAL OF COUNSEL OF RECORD:** Any attorney seeking to withdraw as counsel of record from a case shall file a written motion and submit a proposed Judgment Entry to the Court. The Motion and proposed Judgment Entry shall state with particularity the reason(s) for the requested withdrawal of counsel. No attorney will be permitted to withdraw as counsel of record in the case unless any one of the following four three (4/3) requirements are met:
  - **1. By Motion:** The motion contains an acknowledgment signed by the client that states as follows:
    - a. The client understands the case will proceed according to the time schedule previously established by the Court, whether or not the client retains a new attorney;
    - b. The client consents to the withdrawal of the attorney; and
    - c. The address and telephone number where the client may be personally contacted by the Court.
  - 2. Substitution of New Counsel of Record: There is concurrent substitution of new counsel for the client.
  - **3. At Hearing:** The Court conducts a hearing at which the client and the attorney seeking to withdraw are present, and the Court finds that there is good cause for the withdrawal.
  - **4. Abandonment and Lack of Cooperation:** The Motion contains an acknowledgement by the Attorney specifically stating the facts and circumstances forming the basis of the inability to remain as counsel for the party. Said permission shall be granted by the Court only upon good cause shown.
- **E. PRO SE LITIGANTS:** Nothing in these Rules shall be construed to prevent any party from representing himself or herself in any action before the Court. As used in these rules, "counsel" means the attorney of record for a particular party. Any reference to "counsel" shall fully apply to a party appearing *pro se* before the Court, unless clearly inapplicable. Any pleading, motion or other filing which is filed by a party appearing *pro se* shall be signed by that party pursuant to Ohio Civil Rule 11.

## **Rule 5: APPOINTMENT OF COUNSEL**

Although limited, in certain cases, a party may be entitled to appointed counsel. Any person seeking court appointed counsel must complete the Erie County Public Defender Application, (Form 2.00 in the Appendix), and return it within three (3) days of receipt of the pleadings. The Erie County Public Defender's Office shall then determine if the applicant is eligible for court appointed counsel. The Court reserves jurisdiction to order the party to pay legal fees of court appointed counsel if it is later discovered that the party was not eligible for appointed counsel.

## **Rule 6: PLEADINGS – GENERAL REQUIREMENTS**

- **A. PAPER SIZE:** All documents filed with the Court (including the Financial Affidavit) shall be typewritten or computer-generated on letter-size paper (approximately 8 ½" x 11"), and shall be securely stapled at the top left-hand corner and unfolded. All pages shall be numbered in the following format: "Page\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_." The Court may grant exceptions to this rule for good cause shown.
- **B.** MARGINS: All pleadings shall have a minimum 1 ½" margin at the top, a minimum ½" margin on the right edge, and a minimum 1" margin at all other edges, except as specifically permitted by these Rules.

#### C. CAPTIONS OF PLEADINGS:

- 1. Initial Pleadings and Judgment Entries: The caption at the top of the Complaint, any initial pleading in a post-decree action, and all Judgment Entries, in addition to stating the name of the Court and the County and State, shall have the following regarding each party:
  - a. Name:
  - b. Residence address of each party (unless otherwise permitted by the Court);
  - c. Social security number; and
  - d. Date of birth.
- 2. Subsequent Pleadings: Pleadings filed subsequent to any initial pleading, except Judgment Entries, shall state the case number, the names, and party status (i.e. Plaintiff, etc.) of each party.
- **3. Retention of Caption:** Once a case is filed with the Clerk of Courts, the case shall retain that caption. Any subsequent pleadings shall continue to be captioned as in the original complaint. If a party's name changes from that contained in the original complaint, that party's original name and new name (listed as "aka") shall be listed in the caption.
- **4. Judge's and Magistrate's Names:** All pleadings shall contain the Judge's name in the caption. Once a magistrate has heard any aspect of a pending case, or issued an order or decision in the case, all subsequent pleadings in that case shall also contain that Magistrate's name.
- **D. SPACE FOR TIME-STAMP:** Every pleading filed with the Court shall contain sufficient space to the right hand of the caption for the time-stamp. Said Space shall be a minimum of  $2 \frac{1}{2} \times 2 \frac{1}{2}$  inches.

- **E. ATTORNEY/PARTY INFORMATION:** All pleadings shall contain the name, address, telephone number and registration number of the attorney filing the pleading. If the party is appearing *pro se* in the action, the pleading shall contain the party's name, address and telephone number.
- F. PLEADING REQUIREMENTS: When these Rules specify that certain pleadings or forms are to be simultaneously filed, all of those pleadings or forms must be filed together, or the Court may refuse to permit the documents to be filed. All documents must be accurately and fully completed, in typewritten or computer-generated form, or the Court may refuse to permit the documents to be filed. Financial affidavits must be accurate and fully complete, have all required documentation attached, and be checked for mathematical accuracy prior to filing. All pleadings which require a notarized signature shall be notarized prior to filing. Documents which do not comply with this Rule will be held by the Court, in which case the Court will notify counsel that the papers can be retrieved for correction.
- **G. DELIVERY OF PLEADINGS FOR FILING:** Pursuant to Civil Rule 5(E), all pleadings shall be delivered to the Judge of this Court for filing, and the date of delivery (receipt) shall promptly be noted on the documents. Thereafter, the Court shall transmit the documents to the Clerk of Courts for filing. All pleadings shall be considered filed as of the delivery date noted thereon by the Court, or in the absence of a delivery date, the time-stamped date placed thereon by the Clerk of Courts.

#### H. COPIES OF PLEADINGS:

- 1. Number of Copies: The party responsible for providing pleadings or documents to the Court make sufficient copies of all pleadings, which shall (at a minimum) include, the original, and sufficient copies for service of process, a copy for the Court, and a copy for CSEA in any support-related proceeding.
- 2. Grouping Copies: When multiple pleadings or documents are transmitted to the Court at the same time, the original and all copies of each pleading shall be grouped together. For example, when transmitting a Motion and Judgment Entry together, the original and all copies of the Motion shall be grouped together, and the original and all copies of the Judgment Entry shall be grouped together.

### **Rule 7: POSTING OF NOTICES FOR SERVICE BY PUBLICATION**

Whenever a Plaintiff proceeding *in forma pauperis* in a divorce, annulment or legal separation action requests service by publication, via posting and mailing as provided in Ohio Civil Rule 4.4(A)(2), the Plaintiff shall file an affidavit regarding lack of knowledge of the Defendant's current address as provided in that rule. Pursuant to Ohio Civil Rule 4.4(A)(2), the Court designates the Clerk of Courts as the person responsible for accomplishing posting of notices for service by publication. Notices shall be posted in a conspicuous location near the main entrance to the following buildings:

- 1. Erie County Courthouse;
- 2. Erie County Building; and
- **3.** Erie County Department of Job and Family Services, 221 West Parish Street, Sandusky, Ohio.

The notice that is posted shall contain the same information required in a newspaper publication pursuant to Division (A)(1) of Ohio Civil Rule 4.4. The Notice shall be posted in the required locations for six (6) consecutive weeks. The Clerk of Court shall comply with all other requirements of Civil Rule 4.4 (A)(2) with regard to mailing the complaint and summons to the Defendant's last known address, and shall properly note service of process upon the docket of this Court.

## **Rule 8: MAGISTRATES**

- **A. MAGISTRATE'S AUTHORITY:** All Magistrates appointed by this Court shall have full authority pursuant to the provisions of Rules 53 and 75 of the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure in any action pending before this Court, subject to the Court's General Order of Reference.
- **B.** MAGISTRATE'S HEARINGS AND DECISIONS: The Magistrate shall hear all issues of fact and law in any assigned case, issue an Order of Decision, and file the same pursuant to Rule 53 of the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure. The Magistrate shall exercise the power to regulate all proceedings in every hearing as if by the Court and do all acts and take all measures necessary or proper for the efficient performance of the Magistrate's duties under this Rule.
- C. FINAL DECREE FOLLOWING MAGISTRATE'S DECISION: Any Judgment Entry, following a Magistrate's Decision, shall be prepared and delivered to the Court by the party designated by the Magistrate, within fourteen (14) days of the expiration of the objection period or within fourteen (14) days after the Court has ruled upon any objections. The Judgment Entry shall contain complete findings and orders of the Court, without reference to the Magistrate's Decision. It is not acceptable to incorporate the Magistrate's Decision into the final decree of divorce
- **D. APPROVAL SIGNATURE LINE FOR MAGISTRATE:** Any Judgment Entry submitted by counsel, following issuance of a Magistrate's Decision, shall contain an approval signature line for a magistrate, in addition to a signature line for the Judge. The signature line for the magistrate shall be placed in the approval column on the left side of the page.

## E. OBJECTION TO MAGISTRATE'S DECISION AND MOTION TO SET ASIDE MAGISTRATE'S ORDER:

- 1. **Filing:** A party filing an Objection to a Magistrate's Decision, or a Motion to Set Aside a Magistrate's Order, shall file a written pleading in compliance with Civil Rule 53. The motion or objection shall be specific and shall state with particularity the grounds for the motion or objection, including copies of any supporting caselaw. A copy of the motion or objection shall be served on opposing counsel or the opposing party, if unrepresented, in accordance with the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure.
- 2. Transcripts: Any party requesting preparation of a transcript of any hearing before a magistrate, or any relevant portion(s) thereof, must file a statement (D.R. Form 10.00 in the Appendix) containing the name and address of the transcriptionist, date the transcript was ordered and the anticipated completion date of the transcript, within fourteen (14) days of the filing of the Objection to the Magistrate's Decision or the Motion to Set Aside a Magistrate's Decision. Failure to timely file Court Form 10.00 constitutes a waiver by that party of any request for a transcript, in which case, the Court may proceed immediately to rule on the motion or objection as though no request for transcript had been made.

- 3. Alternate to Transcript: In lieu of a transcript and for purposes of objections only, a party may request a copy of the recording of the proceedings by filing a Motion (D.R. Form 10.10 in the Appendix) and a Judgment Entry for Recordings of Proceedings (D.R. Form 10.20 in the Appendix) with the Court and upon filing the appropriate deposit. Said recording will be provided in compact disc format and any reference to testimony shall be made by the time stamp provided in the recording itself. Only a party paying said deposit shall be provided a copy of said recording.
- **F. WAIVER OF OBJECTIONS TO MAGISTRATE'S DECISION**: Parties may voluntarily waive their rights to file Objections to the Magistrates Decision to expedite the finalization of agreed matters. Said waiver shall be made in writing using Waiver of Objections to Magistrate's Decision (D.R. Form 10.30 in the Appendix) and be completed by both parties prior to finalization of the matter.

#### G. FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

- 1. Filing: With regard to a Magistrate's <u>Decision</u> (as defined by Civil Rule 53), any party may request Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law pursuant to Civil Rules 52 and 53. The Court will not order or require preparation of Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law with regard to any Magistrate's <u>Order</u> (as defined by Civil Rule 53).
- **2. Timeliness:** The request for Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law must be timely filed pursuant to Civil Rules 52 and 53 (i.e., within seven (7) days of journalization of the Magistrate's Decision).
- **3. By Magistrate's Order:** A Magistrate may, in his or her sole decision, require the parties to file proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law at the close of the presentation of evidence in any case.

### **Rule 9: GENERAL HEARING REQUIREMENTS**

- **A. EXHIBITS:** All exhibits shall be marked in advance of any hearing. The Plaintiff/First Petitioner shall use numbers and the Defendant/Second Petitioner shall use letters. No later than seven (7) days prior to any hearing or trial, the parties shall exchange copies of all exhibits, and shall inform the Court, as to which exhibits will be admitted by stipulation and which exhibits will be contested.
- **B. TRIAL BRIEFS:** If counsel anticipates any novel or complex issue which will be presented at hearing, counsel may file trial briefs prior to the hearing. The Court may, on a case-by-case basis, require the parties to file trial briefs or memoranda of law prior to a hearing.
- C. DRESS CODE: All attorneys, parties and witnesses, when attending Court, shall dress in a manner which reflects respect for the Court and for the decorum of formal legal proceedings. No individual shall appear in the Courtroom dressed inappropriately, as determined by the Court. It shall be the duty of counsel to advise the parties and witnesses of this rule prior to their appearance in Court.
- **D. CELLPHONES, CAMERAPHONES, PAGERS AND SIMILAR DEVICES**: All attorneys, parties and witnesses, when attending Court, shall turn off or disable any cell phone, cameraphone, pagers or similar electronic devices that emit or record audible sounds or pictures which could disrupt Court proceedings. For good cause shown the Court may permit use of said

devices. Any such device which disrupts Court proceedings or causes any inconvenience to others shall be subject to immediate seizure and potential contempt proceedings.

## **Rule 10: CASE PROCEDURES FOR INITIAL ACTIONS**

#### A. DIVORCE, ANNULMENT, AND LEGAL SEPARATION ACTIONS:

- **1. Initial Pleadings:** A divorce, annulment or legal separation case shall be commenced by filing the following mandatory documents with the Court:
  - a. Complaint
  - b. Instructions for service of the Complaint and other pleadings;
  - c. Financial Disclosure Affidavit (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix), with proof of income (pay stubs and complete federal tax returns including all applicable schedules for the last 2 tax years);
  - d. Child Custody Affidavit (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix), if the parties have children;
  - e. Child Support Computation Worksheet (if the parties have children);
  - f. Judgment Entry of Injunctions (D.R. Form 3.00 in the Appendix), unless a signed Separation Agreement with an injunctive clause is filed with the Complaint;
  - g. Request for Temporary Orders (D.R. Form 4.00 in the Appendix) with an accompanying Affidavit, if the Plaintiff desires Temporary Orders and;
  - h. Information Form (D.R. Form 1.10 in the Appendix).
- 2. **Defendant's Proposal for Temporary Orders:** Unless a time extension for responding is granted by the Court, the Defendant shall have fourteen (14) days after the date of service of the Plaintiff's Request for Temporary Orders, to file Defendant's Proposal for Temporary Orders. Any response by Defendant shall include the following:
  - a. Defendant's Proposal for Temporary Orders (D.R. Form 4.00 in the Appendix) with an accompanying Affidavit;
  - b. Financial Disclosure Affidavit (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix) with proof of income (pay stubs and complete federal tax returns including all applicable schedules for the last 2 tax years);
  - c. Child Custody Affidavit (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix) if the parties have children; and
  - d. Child Support Computation Worksheet (failure to submit a Worksheet will be deemed an agreement with Plaintiff's submitted Worksheet).

- 3. **Defendant's Answer and/or Counterclaim:** Within twenty-eight (28) days after the date of service of the Complaint upon the Defendant, the Defendant may file an Answer and/or Counterclaim.
- **4. Temporary Orders:** After fourteen (14) days from the date of service of the Plaintiff's Request for Temporary Orders upon the Defendant, the Court will review all documents filed and issue a Temporary Order. The Court will not enter any Shared Parenting Order on a temporary basis unless the parties have filed a Shared Parenting Plan with the Court.
- 5. Oral Hearing on Temporary Orders: If a party contests a Temporary Order, or desires the Court to take evidence with regard to Temporary Orders, that party may file a written "Request for Temporary Order Hearing." The Request must be filed within fourteen (14 days after the date the Temporary Order is journalized. The Request must specify what issue(s) the party desires the Court to hear. It is not necessary for a party to file an objection, exception or any similarly titled pleading in order to obtain a temporary order hearing pursuant to Civil Rule 75. Any untimely request for a temporary order hearing shall be treated as a motion to modify temporary orders, absent good cause shown.
- **6. Motions to Modify Temporary Orders:** The Court shall not grant any Motion to Modify Temporary Orders, except upon a showing of a change of circumstances or for other good cause.
- 7. Case Management/Pretrial Conferences: The Court and parties shall follow the Case Management/Pretrial Conference procedures set forth in Local Rule 17, except as set forth herein.

#### 8. Uncontested Final Hearings:

- a. <u>By Agreement</u>: Counsel for the Plaintiff shall notify the Court if a divorce, annulment or legal separation is proceeding as an uncontested case by agreement of the parties. Counsel for the Plaintiff shall secure a final uncontested hearing date from the Assignment Clerk, and shall prepare an appropriate hearing notice and provide the same to the Assignment Clerk more than fourteen (14) days prior to the final hearing date. The Assignment Clerk shall thereafter mail the notice to the Parties and Counsel at least seven (7) days prior to the commencement of the final hearing date.
- b. **By Default**: Counsel for the Plaintiff shall notify the Court if a divorce, annulment or legal separation is proceeding as an uncontested case because the defendant has failed to appear after proper notice. Counsel for the Plaintiff shall secure a final uncontested hearing date from the Assignment Clerk, and shall prepare an appropriate hearing notice and provide the same to the Assignment Clerk more than thirty (30) days prior to the final hearing date. The Assignment Clerk shall thereafter mail the notice to the Parties and Counsel at least fourteen (14) days prior to the commencement of the final hearing date. Counsel shall instruct the Assignment Clerk in the hearing notice of the method and place of service to assure proper notice to Defendant.
- **9. Contested Final Hearings:** Contested cases shall be set for final hearing by the Court, and notice of the hearing shall be served by the Assignment Clerk.
- **10. Divorce Following Decree of Legal Separation:** A divorce action following a Decree of Legal Separation shall be initiated by filing a new divorce action.

#### **B. DISSOLUTION OF MARRIAGE ACTIONS**

- 1. Required Documents: Dissolution of marriage action shall be commenced by the filing of a Petition for Dissolution of Marriage, with a Separation Agreement attached thereto, and the following documents:
  - a. Financial Disclosure Affidavit for both parties (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix);
  - b. Waiver of Service of Summons/Process by both parties;
  - c. Child Custody Affidavit (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix) executed by both parties, if applicable;
  - d. Waiver of Attorney by the unrepresented party (if only one attorney);
  - e. Child Support Computation Worksheet executed by both parties, if applicable;
  - f. Pretrial Statement and Settlement Proposal (D.R. Form 7.00 in the Appendix) and;
  - g. Information Form (D.R. Form 1.10 in the Appendix).
- **2. Final Dissolution Hearing:** Upon the filing of the dissolution of marriage action, the attorney filing the case shall obtain a date for final hearing from the Assignment Clerk. The final hearing will be scheduled on a date following the 30-day waiting period required by statute.
- 3. Conversion to Divorce: Any motion to convert a dissolution action to a divorce action must be filed prior to the final hearing unless leave of Court is granted. Any motion filed after the ninety (90) day time period has expired will be summarily dismissed.

#### C. CIVIL DOMESTIC VIOLENCE PROCEEDINGS:

- 1. Required Pleadings: A civil domestic violence action shall be commenced by filing a Civil Domestic Violence Petition on the form mandated by the Ohio Supreme Court, or by filing a pleading in substantial compliance with that form. Forms for civil domestic violence actions are available upon request from the Court. The Petition shall be accompanied by Instructions for Service. If the petitioner requests parenting orders, the Petition shall also be accompanied by a Child Custody Affidavit. Further, if support issues exist, a Financial Disclosure Affidavit, (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix), shall be filed by both parties prior to the 7 day hearing.
- 2. No Filing Fee: The Clerk of Courts shall not charge a filing fee deposit to file a Civil Domestic Violence Petition.
- **3. Modification of Civil Protection Order:** The Court reserves the jurisdiction to modify a final Civil Protection Order, upon written motion of either party. A form motion to modify a final Civil Protection Order is available upon request from the Court.
- D. SUPPORT ACTIONS BEFORE ACKNOWLEDGMENT IS FINAL PURSUANT TO O.R.C. SECTION 2151.232: Either parent who signed an acknowledgment of paternity may bring an action for support of the child, <u>before</u> the acknowledgment becomes final. Any Complaint for child support pursuant to this statute shall be accompanied by the following documents:

- 1. A copy of the executed acknowledgment form;
- 2. Documentation that the acknowledgment was entered in the birth registry pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3111.24, and that the acknowledgment has not been rescinded or otherwise vacated;
- **3.** A completed Financial Disclosure Affidavit (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix);
- **4.** Child Support Computation Worksheet;
- 5. Instructions for Service of Process; and
- **6.** Notice of Hearing.
- **E. SUPPORT-ONLY ACTIONS PURSUANT TO O.R.C. SECTION 2151.231:** A parent, guardian, custodian of a child, the person with whom a child resides, or CSEA may file an action for support of a child, without regard to the marital status of the child's parents. Any party objecting to an administrative support order entered by CSEA must also make that objection by commencing an action pursuant to O.R.C. Section 2151.231. Any complaint for support filed pursuant to this statute shall be accompanied by the following documents:
  - 1. Any Court or administrative order, acknowledgment (including birth registry entry) or other document establishing parentage;
  - 2. A completed Financial Affidavit (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix);
  - **3.** Child Support Computation Worksheet;
  - 4. Instructions for Service of Process; and
  - **5.** Notice of Hearing.
- F. COMPLAINT FOR ALLOCATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES OR FOR PARENTING TIME/VISITATION PURSUANT TO O.R.C. 3111.13(C), 3109.04, AND/OR 3109.12: Any Complaint for Allocation of Parental Rights and Responsibilities or Parenting Time/Visitation shall contain or be accompanied by:
  - 1. Any Court or administrative order, acknowledgment (including birth registry entry) or other document establishing parentage;
  - 2. Child Custody Affidavit (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix);
  - **3.** A Mediation Order pursuant to Rule 27, unless good cause is alleged in the Complaint as to why a mediation referral should not be made;
  - **4.** A completed Financial Disclosure Affidavit (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix) and Child Support Computation Worksheet, if applicable;
  - 5. Instructions for Service of Process; and
  - **6.** Notice of a Case Management/Pretrial Conference.

- G. COMPLAINT TO ESTABLISH PARENT AND CHILD RELATIONSHIP PURSUANT TO O.R.C. 3111.01 TO 3111.18: Any person filing a Complaint to Establish the Parent-Child Relationship shall:
  - 1. Allege in the Complaint that he or she has requested an administrative determination of the parent-child relationship from the Child Support Enforcement Agency, and that the administrative process is exhausted;
  - 2. Attach to the Complaint a copy of any administrative parentage order issued by the Child Support Enforcement Agency or acknowledgment of paternity;
  - **3.** Set forth specific allegations to support a finding of fraud, duress or material mistake of fact, if the Complaint is filed to affect a rescission of an acknowledgment of paternity on those grounds;
  - **4.** Child Custody Affidavit (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix), a completed Financial Disclosure Affidavit (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix); and
  - **5.** Child Support Computation Worksheet, if applicable.

## Rule 11: CONTEMPT AND POST-DECREE MOTIONS

#### A. CONTEMPT MOTIONS:

- **1. Required Pleadings:** A Motion for Contempt shall be commenced by the moving party filing the following documents:
  - a. Motion containing specific reference to the Court Orders claimed to be violated. (Failure to include specific reference may result in summary dismissal of the motion);
  - b. Supporting affidavit of movant and other affidavits in support, if applicable; and
  - c. A Motion and Affidavit to Show Cause (D.R. Form 8.00 in the Appendix), requiring the alleged contemnor to appear for a hearing on a specified date and time which includes instructions to the Clerk for service of process upon the alleged contemnor (service of the motion upon opposing counsel is insufficient in a contempt action).
- 2. Order to Appear: The moving party shall also provide a notice to the assignment clerks with blank areas to fill in the hearing date and time. The moving party shall secure a hearing date from the Assignment Clerk before filing the contempt documents with the Clerk, and such hearing date shall be contained in the Order to Show Cause. Said Notice will be filed with the Motion.
- **3. Appearance of Counsel:** Any attorney retained to defend a contempt motion shall promptly enter an appearance in the <u>case</u>, whether or not his or her client is filing a responsive pleading. Upon filing of the entry of appearance, both attorneys shall be in communication with the other to resolve and identify all issues prior to any Court hearing.
- **4. Opposing Response/Brief:** Any party may file a written response/brief opposing the motion, together with supporting affidavits. Any such response/brief shall be filed with

the Court at least seven (7) days prior to the first scheduled Case Management/Pretrial Conference or hearing on the motion, except for good cause shown.

#### **B. POST-DECREE MOTIONS:**

- 1. **Required Pleadings:** Any post-decree proceeding shall be commenced by the filing of the following pleadings:
  - a. Motion and Affidavit to Modify (D.R. Form 8.10 in the Appendix) containing specific reference to the Court Orders claimed to be violated or requested for modification. (Failure to include specific reference may result in summary dismissal of the motion);
  - b. Supporting affidavit (D.R. Form 8.10 in the Appendix) of movant and other affidavits in support, if applicable;
  - c. Financial Disclosure Affidavit (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix), if financial issues are in question;
  - d. Child Custody Affidavit (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix), required in all parenting proceedings (i.e. cases involving parental rights and responsibilities; parenting time; companionship or visitation);
  - e. Notice of Hearing or Order to Appear; and
  - f. Instructions for Service.
- 2. Contents of Notice of Hearing: Before filing any pleadings, the moving party shall also provide a notice to the assignment clerks with blank areas to fill in the hearing date and time. Said Notice will be filed with the Motion. Any Notice of Hearing on a motion concerning parenting or support issues shall also contain the following advisement:
  - TO THE PERSON SERVED WITH THIS DOCUMENT: You are required to file a Financial Disclosure Affidavit, D.R. Form 5.00, and Child Custody Affidavit, D.R. Form 6.00, with the Court at least seven (7) days prior to the hearing/conference scheduled herein.
- 3. Service of Process: The moving party shall serve the opposing party with process as provided in the Ohio Rules of Civil Procedure. Civil Rule 75 requires that all post-decree motions be served in accordance with Civil Rules 4 to 4.6. This means that all post-decree motions must be served on the opposing party, unless that party waives service. Additionally, when accomplishing service of process by publication, the movant must comply with the provisions of Civil Rule 4.4 and the notice must be published or posted for six (6) consecutive weeks prior to a scheduled hearing on the motion.
- **4. Appearance of Counsel:** Any attorney retained in a post-decree proceeding shall promptly enter his or her appearance as counsel of record in the case, whether or not his or her client is filing a responsive pleading. Upon filing of the entry of appearance, both attorneys shall be in communication with the other to resolve and identify all issues prior to any Court hearing.
- **5. Opposing Response/Brief:** Any party may file a written response/brief opposing the motion, together with supporting affidavits. Any such response/brief shall be filed with

the Court at least seven (7) days prior to the first scheduled Case Management/Pretrial Conference or hearing on the motion, except for good cause shown.

## **Rule 12: FOREIGN DECREES**

#### A. FOREIGN SUPPORT ORDERS

- 1. **Registration for Enforcement Only:** A party may effect the registration of a foreign support order by filing all of the following documents with the Clerk of Courts:
  - a. "Petition for Registration of Foreign Support Order" (referred to as a "Letter of Transmittal" by statute) which complies with the provisions of O.R.C. Section 3115.39;
  - b. "Notice of Registration of Order" which complies with O.R.C. Section 3115.42; and
  - c. Instructions for Service of Process.

In the event the non-registering party does not contest the validity or enforcement of the foreign support order within 20 days after service, the party seeking registration shall prepare and submit a "Confirmation of Registration Judgment Entry" to the Court. If the non-registering party files a written pleading with the Court contesting the validity or enforcement of the foreign support order, the Court shall schedule the matter for hearing and give notice to all parties.

- 2. Registration for Modification, or Modification and Enforcement: A party seeking to register an order for modification, or for modification and enforcement, shall file <u>all</u> of the following documents with the Clerk of Courts.
  - a. "Petition for Registration of Foreign Support Order" (referred to as a "Letter of Transmittal" by statute) which complies with the provisions of O.R.C. Section 3115.39;
  - b. "Notice of Registration of Order" which complies with O.R.C. Section 3115.42;
  - c. Instructions for Service of Process;
  - d. "Motion to Modify Foreign Support Order," specifying the grounds for modification;
  - e. Affidavit alleging facts which support this Court's jurisdiction to modify the foreign support order;
  - f. Financial Disclosure Affidavit (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix); and
  - g. Notice of Jurisdictional Hearing.

In the event the non-registering party does not contest the validity or enforcement of the foreign support order within 20 days after service, the party seeking registration shall prepare and submit a "Confirmation of Registration Judgment Entry" to the Court. If the non-registering party files a written pleading with the Court contesting the validity or enforcement of the foreign support order, the Court shall conduct a hearing regarding those issues at the

Jurisdictional Hearing. Following issuance of any modified support order by this Court, the party obtaining the modification shall comply with O.R.C. Section 3115.51.

- **3. Modification of a Foreign Support Order after Registration:** A party seeking to modify a foreign support order which has already been properly registered with this Court shall file all of the following documents with the Clerk of Courts:
  - a. "Motion to Modify Foreign Support Order," specifying the grounds for modification;
  - b. Affidavit alleging facts which support this Court's jurisdiction to modify the foreign support order;
  - c. Financial Disclosure Affidavit, (D.R. Form 5.00; in the Appendix);
  - d. Instructions for Service of Process; and
  - e. Notice of Jurisdictional Hearing.

Following issuance of any modified support order by this Court, the party obtaining the modification shall comply with O.R.C. Section 3115.51

#### **B. FOREIGN PARENTING DECREES:**

- 1. Registration: Any party may register a foreign parenting decree with the Clerk of Courts, pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3109.32(A). Registration is a ministerial act by the Clerk of Courts and does not require a motion or approval of the Court. The Clerk shall enter the parenting decree in the "Parenting and Custody Registry," pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3109.33. No case number shall be assigned to any parenting decree filed in the "Parenting and Custody Registry." The mere filing of a parenting decree from another state with the Clerk of Courts pursuant to O.R.C. 3109.32(A) does not, in and of itself, automatically confer jurisdiction on the Court to enforce or modify a foreign parenting decree.
- **2. Procedure for Enforcement or Modification:** The Court will enforce or modify a foreign parenting decree only after conducting a hearing on the issue of jurisdiction, and only after accepting jurisdictions in a duly journalized Judgment Entry. The following procedures govern any request for enforcement or modification of a foreign parenting decree:
  - a. Registration: The Petitioner shall register the foreign parenting decree pursuant to Section (B)(1) above, prior to or simultaneously with filing any petition to enforce or modify a foreign parenting decree.
  - b. Petition to Enforce or Modify: If any party to a properly filed foreign parenting decree desires the Court to enforce or modify that decree, the party shall file a "Petition to Enforce/Modify a Foreign Parenting Decree." A certified copy of the foreign decree shall be attached to the Petition. The Petition shall be filed with the Clerk of Courts, together with any other Court forms required by Rule 11(B) with regard to post-decree motions. Any petition to modify or enforce a foreign parenting decree shall be assigned a case number by the Clerk of Courts.
  - c. Supporting Affidavit: The Petition to Enforce or Modify a foreign parenting decree shall be accompanied by a Supporting Affidavit setting forth:

- (1) Sufficient facts to establish the Court's jurisdiction under O.R.C. Section 3109.22(A);
- (2) Any details concerning any other pending custody or parenting proceedings in another state which may affect the jurisdiction of this Court or its ruling in a custody proceeding;
- (3) Whether or not any other state has made a finding that it does not have jurisdiction to enter a parenting decision, or that it is an inconvenient forum;
- (4) A statement that the parenting decree attached to the Petition is the most recent parenting order issued by any Court with regard to the child(ren); and
- (5) A statement that a certified copy of the parenting decree was registered with the Clerk of Courts pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3109.32(A).
- d. Notice of Hearing: The Petitioner shall obtain a date and time for a Jurisdictional Hearing from the Assignment Clerk, and shall file a Notice of Hearing with the Petition.
- e. Service of Pleadings: The Petitioner shall file Instructions for Service with the Petition requesting the Clerk of Courts to serve a copy of the Petition, the Notice of Hearing and any other accompanying documents on the Respondent. The pleadings shall be served on the Respondent at least twenty (20) days prior to Jurisdictional Hearing.
- f. Jurisdictional Hearing: At the Jurisdictional Hearing, the Court shall take evidence on the issue of whether or not this Court may modify the foreign support order pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3109.21 through 3109.37.
- g. Full Hearing: If the Court determines, by Judgment Entry, that it has jurisdiction, the Court shall schedule the Petition for a full hearing. The Court may order mediation, a home study investigation, appointment of a Guardian Ad Litem, an *in camera* interview of the minor child(ren) or any other appropriate action in connection with the Petition.
- h. Waiver of Hearing. If the parties are in agreement as to the relief requested and desire to waive a hearing of the request, a waiver shall be completed, signed by both parties and filed with the Court prior to any scheduled Court Hearing.

## Rule 13: SOLE OR SPLIT ALLOCATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES BY AGREEMENT

- **A. MANDATORY PLEADINGS:** In order to obtain an Agreed Court Order reallocating sole or split parental rights and responsibilities for a child in a domestic relation or parentage case, the parties shall file the following documents:
  - 1. Written motion (joint or by one party) for modification of allocation of parental rights;
  - 2. A Waiver and Consent signed by both parties. At a minimum, the Waiver and Consent shall contain a waiver of notice of hearing; waiver of hearing on the motion; waiver

service of process; waiver and/or acknowledgment of representation and a statement that each party is consenting to a reallocation of parental rights and responsibilities and personally submitting to the jurisdiction of the Court;

- **3.** Financial Disclosure Affidavits for both parents (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix);
- **4.** Child Custody Affidavit(s) signed by each parent (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix);
- 5. Child Support Worksheet signed by both parties; and
- **6.** A proposed Judgment Entry (signed/approved by all parties/counsel).

(NOTE: To the extent any of these documents were previously filed by the parties in the pending action, they do not need to be re-filed with the motion.)

**B.** MANDATORY LANGUAGE IN JUDGMENT ENTRY: The proposed Agreed Judgment Entry reallocating parental rights and responsibilities must include appropriate O.R.C. 3109.04(E)(1)(a) language as to the legal conclusions made by the Court, as follows:

Based upon representation of the parties, the Court finds that a change has occurred in the circumstances of (the child), (his residential parent), or (either of the parents subject to a shared parenting decree), that the residential parent agrees to a change in the residential parent..., (and/or the child with the consent of the residential parent...integrated...), and that a modification of parental rights and responsibilities is in the best interest of the child.

C. HEARING ON MOTION TO REALLOCATE PARENTAL RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: Generally, the Court will not require a hearing upon any Motion to Reallocate Parental Rights and Responsibilities, when both parties have agreed to the reallocation. However, in its discretion, the Court may schedule a hearing prior to approving any proposed Judgment Entry submitted with the Motion. In the event the Court schedules a hearing, both parties shall appear at the hearing. The failure of either party to appear at the scheduled hearing may result in dismissal of the Motion.

#### **Rule 14: SHARED PARENTING PLANS AND DECREES**

- **A.** MODIFICATION OF PRIOR SOLE/SPLIT PARENTAL RIGHTS ORDER TO SHARED PARENTING: When seeking a Court Order which modifies a prior sole or split parental rights order to shared parenting, the parties shall file the following documents with the Court:
  - 1. A joint written motion requesting shared parenting (if there is no prior order allocating parental rights and responsibilities), or joint motion requesting termination of a prior sole/split custody order and adopting of a shared parenting plan;
  - 2. A Waiver and Consent signed by both parties (At a minimum, the Waiver and Consent shall contain a waiver of notice of hearing; waiver of hearing on the motion; waiver service of process; and a statement that each party is consenting to shared parenting and personally submitting to the jurisdiction of the Court).
  - **3.** Financial Disclosure Affidavits for both parents (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix);

- **4.** Child Custody Affidavit signed by both parents (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix);
- **5.** Child Support Worksheet signed by both parents;
- **6.** Shared Parenting Plan signed by both parents; and
- 7. A proposed Shared Parenting Decree, approving and adopting the Shared Parenting Plan, and signed/approved by both parents/counsel.

(NOTE: To the extent any of these documents were previously filed by the parties in the pending action, they do not need to be re-filed.)

- **B.** MODIFICATION OF PRIOR SHARED PARENTING PLAN AND DECREE: In order to obtain a modification of an existing Shared Parenting Plan and Decree, the parties shall file the following documents with the Court:
  - 1. "Amended Shared Parenting Plan", signed by both parents;
  - 2. Child Custody Affidavit, signed by both parents (D.R. Form 6.00 in the Appendix);
  - **3.** If financial issues are modified, then the following documents, as applicable:
    - a. Financial Disclosure Affidavits for both parents (D.R. Form 5.00 in the Appendix); and
    - b. Child Support Worksheet signed by both parents.
  - **4.** A proposed Shared Parenting Decree, approving and adopting the "Amended Shared Parenting Plan", signed/approved by both parents/counsel;
  - 5. If the parties are in agreement concerning the changes requested a waiver of Hearing, shall be submitted with the proposed Decree and supporting documentation.
- C. MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR SHARED PARENTING PLANS: All shared Parenting Plans (including Amended Shared Parenting Plans) shall contain all of the following provisions:
  - 1. A statement indicating the names of the parents and the children and the child(ren)'s date(s) of birth;
  - 2. A statement that: (1) each parent believes the other parent to be a fit parent, and that each recognizes the unique contributions that each has to offer the child(ren); (2) the parents wish to share legal responsibility for the child(ren), as set forth in the Shared Parenting Plan; (3) the parents' primary concern is the best interests of the minor child(ren); and (4) shared parenting is in the best interest of the minor child(ren);
  - 3. Provisions covering all required statutory factors relevant to the care of the child(ren), including physical living arrangements, child support obligations, child (ren)'s health care, income tax exemptions for the child(ren), and school placement. The plan may also include optional provisions concerning the child(ren)'s education, religious upbringing, child care, removal of the child from the state the child's name, the specific authority of each parent, dispute resolution procedure and any other matter to the best interests of the child(ren);

- **4.** A designation that both parents are "residential parents and legal custodians" of the child(ren); and
- 5. A statement immediately preceding each party's signature on the Shared Parenting Plan, which provides that each party has thoroughly reviewed and understands the Plan; that he or she has voluntarily signed the Plan, and that each party requests that the Court adopt the Plan as the Judgment and Order of conduct.
- **D. MANDATORY LANGUAGE IN SHARED PARENTING DECREE:** A Shared Parenting Decree shall contain all mandatory child support language required by Local Rule 30, and deviation language regarding child support if a deviated amount of child support is agreed upon. See Local Rule 30 below for more requirements). Additionally, the Judgment Entry shall contain <u>one</u> of the following findings, as appropriate:
  - 1. Any Shared Parenting Decree modifying an <u>existing</u> Shared Parenting Order must include appropriate O.R.C. Section 3109.04(E)(2) language as to the legal conclusions made by the Court, as follows:
    - Based upon the representations of the parties, the Court finds that a modification of the existing Shared Parenting Plan is in the best interests of the child(ren).
  - 2. Any Shared Parenting Decree modifying a prior allocation of <u>sole or split</u> parental rights and responsibilities, to shared parenting, shall include appropriate O.R.C. Section 3109.04 (E)(1)(a) language as to the legal conclusions made by the Court, as follows:
    - Based upon the representation of the parties, the Court finds that a change has occurred in the circumstances of (the child), (his residential parent), or (either of the parents subject to a shared parenting decree), that the residential parent agrees to a change in the residential parent...(and/or the child with the consent of the residential parent... integrated...), and that a modification of parental rights and responsibilities is in the best interest of the child.
  - **3.** Any initial Shared Parenting Decree, in a case which does not contain any prior allocation of parent rights and responsibilities, shall include appropriate O.R.C. Section 3109.04(D) language as to the legal conclusions made by the Court, as follows:
    - Based upon the representation of the parties, the Court finds that adoption of the attached Shared Parenting Plan is in the best interests of the minor child(ren).
- **E. HEARING REGARDING SHARED PARENTING:** Generally, the Court will not require a hearing prior to approving a Shared Parenting Plan and Decree. However, in its discretion, the Court may schedule a hearing prior to approving any proposed Shared Parenting Plan. In the event that the Court schedules a hearing, both parties shall appear at the hearing. The failure of either party to appear at the scheduled hearing may result in denial of the Shared Parenting Plan.

## Rule 15: AGREED POST-DECREE MODIFICATIONS OF PROPERTY DIVISION AWARDS

In the event the parties agree to a modification of a property division award previously entered by the Court, the parties shall file a joint motion requesting the modification. The motion shall be filed pursuant to Civil Rule 60(B), and shall state the specific provision of the rule applicable to the motion and the specific reason why the modification is sought. The motion shall be signed by both parties, and the parties shall waive notice of hearing and any findings of fact and conclusion of law with regard to the modification. The parties shall also state the modification is equitable pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3105.171. An Agreed Judgment Entry shall be submitted with the motion, and the Judgment Entry shall be approved by both parties and their legal counsel. The Agreed Judgment Entry modifying the property division pursuant to Civil Rule 60(B) shall contain the following language:

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED th Rule 60(B), the divorce/dissolution decree of	is hereby vacated
or otherwise reopened for the limited purpose, and to the limite above agreement in the final decree. Accordingly, the Cou adopts the above agreement of the parties as the judgment an	urt hereby approves and
doing so, the Court incorporates the same into the final decree of the parties, originally filed on, and hereby re	raffirms and re-adopts all
aspects of said final decree as the judgment and order of the Co	ourt, as modified above.
The specific subsection of Civil Rule 60 must be cited in the Judgment Eplaced at the end of the Agreed Judgment Entry.	Entry. The above clause should be

**Rule 16:TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY BY JUDGMENT ENTRY** 

Situations arise in domestic relations cases where, for whatever reason, a party fails to execute the proper instruments to effectuate a transfer of title to property allocated under a decree of divorce, dissolution, or legal separation. The following language is acceptable to the Court to effectuate transfers of such property under Civil Rule 70:

WH]	EREFORE,	PURSUA	NT TO	OHIO	CIVIL	RULE	70,	IT	IS C	ORDE	RED,
	UDGED, Á						,				,
	1.			is herel	y divest	ed of all	right	t, title	e, and	l inter	est in
the	1following	described	motor	vehicle	s, and	the sa	ame	are	here	by v	ested
year.	, make, mod	lel, and VIN	l numbe	er of each	vehicle)	. The E	rie C	ounty	Cler	k of C	ourts
is he	reby author	ized and dir	ected to	accept a	certified	copy of	the w	vithin	Judg	ment	Entry
as ef	fectuating c	onveyance o	of said p	roperty i	n due for	m of law	7.				
	2			_ is herel	y divest	ed of all	right	t, title	e, and	linter	est in
the f	ollowing de	scribed real	estate,	and the s	ame is h	ereby ve	sted i	n			,
free	and clear of	f any/all cla	ims of_			: (s	tate f	ull ar	nd aco	curate	legal
desc	ription of pr	operty; incl	uding p	ermanent	parcel n	umber, p	orope	rty st	reet a	.ddress	s, and
prior	instrument	recording 1	referenc	e). The	Erie Cou	unty Rec	order	is he	ereby	autho	orized
and	directed, for	r recording	purpose	s, to acc	ept a cer	tified co	py of	the '	withii	n Judg	gment
Entr	y as effectua	iting convey	ance of	said pro	perty in d	lue form	of lav	W.			

ted to forward by re	gular U.S. mail a co
ted to forward by re	egular U.S. mail a co
-	750101 0.0. 111011 0 0
at	. A copy
(last atto	rney of record, if an

The proposed Judgment Entry should include historical prefatory language explaining why the Order is needed. The Judgment Entry shall be submitted to any opposing counsel for approval, prior to submission to the Court, absent good cause shown.

#### **Rule 17: CASE MANAGEMENT AND PRETRIAL CONFERENCES**

- **A.** WHEN HELD: Case Management and Pretrial Conference(s) shall be held in all contested divorce, annulment, and legal separation cases, prior to any final hearing. Case Management or Pretrial Conference(s) may also be held in any other type of action, at the discretion of the Court.
- **B. PURPOSE:** The purpose of Case Management and Pretrial Conferences is to achieve an amicable settlement of the case and, in the event settlement is not achieved, to expedite trial of the action
- C. CASE MANAGEMENT CONFERENCE: A Case Management Conference shall be held approximately ninety (90) days after the action is filed. At the time of the Case Management Conference, counsel shall:
  - 1. Explore the possibility of spousal conciliation or the need for any family counseling;
  - 2. Identify disputed and undisputed issues;
  - 3. Discuss mediation, home investigation, in-camera interview of children, psychological examinations or appointment of a Guardian Ad Litem, if there are disputed parenting issues in the case;
  - **4.** Verify that a complete disclosure of all assets and debts has been made by the parties;
  - **5.** Discuss discovery issues and the need for appraisals or expert evaluations;
  - **6.** Discuss the time required for a final hearing in the case; and
  - 7. Establish a schedule for mandatory discovery, which shall include, but not be limited to, the exchange of the following:
    - a. Appraisals of any real estate and personal property;
    - b. An accounting for monies expended by the parties during the pendency of the case, if it is relevant to the case issues;

- c. Copies of the last three (3) years of federal income tax returns, unless already in the possession of the other party;
- d. Balances due on all liabilities of either or both of the parties, as of "the ending date of the marriage";
- e. Documentary proof of income from all sources, including a breakdown of overtime earnings during each of the preceding three (3) years;
- f. Copies of the most recent statements on all bank accounts, IRA's, CD's, stocks mortgages or other assets for which the parties receive a statement;
- g. Pension and profit-sharing plan information from each party's employer, sufficient to determine present value, including the most recent plan summary;
- h. Health insurance information, including the cost of COBRA coverage;
- i. Copies of all deeds, vehicle registrations or titles, unless already in the possession of the other party; and
- j. ALL MANDATORY DISCOVERIES MUST BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO THE FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE IN THE CASE.

The parties are not required to file any additional pleadings prior to the Case Management Conference. However, if a party discovers that his or her original Financial Disclosure Affidavit is not accurate for any reason, that party shall file an Amended Financial Disclosure Affidavit prior to the next scheduled Case Management or Pretrial Conference in the case.

- **D. FINAL PRETRIAL CONFERENCE:** Both parties shall prepare, file and exchange a Pretrial Statement and Settlement Proposal no later than the day of the Pretrial Conference in the case. That document shall be supplemented as necessary prior to trial. The document shall substantially comport with the Pretrial Statement and Settlement Proposal Form (D.R. Form 7.00 in the Appendix). At the Pretrial Conference, counsel shall:
  - 1. Discuss and narrow the issues in controversy;
  - **2.** Attempt to stipulate as to the authenticity of documents to be introduced at trial, so as to eliminate the need for testimony from a records custodian;
  - **3.** Exchange any medical reports, psychological reports, hospital records or other health related documents;
  - **4.** Exchange any reports of expert witnesses expected to be called at trial, and discuss the potential stipulation of any such reports, without the need for expert testimony;
  - **5.** Address issues of asset valuation and liability amounts, and attempt to stipulate valuation and liability amounts;
  - **6.** Identify any issues relating to the division of household goods and furnishings, and attempt to limit the trial to only the items which are disputed; and
  - 7. Discuss and narrow any parenting issues.

- **E. COUNSEL:** Counsel of record shall attend Case Management and Pretrial Conferences. Parties shall be present to assist counsel with information and/or settlement negotiations. If counsel or a party cannot be present for some reason, counsel or the party (if unrepresented) may seek approval from the Court to participate by telephone.
- **F. STIPULATIONS:** During any Case Management or Pretrial Conferences, the Judge or Magistrate may decide any preliminary matter and record any stipulations or settlements of the parties. Any stipulations or agreements entered into at a Case Management or Pretrial Conference shall be immediately reduced to writing, signed by both parties and their counsel, and attached to any Case Management/Pretrial Conference Order.
- **G. DISCOVERY ISSUES:** No motion to compel discovery, motion for protective order, or similar discovery motion shall be filed with the Court until the problem has been thoroughly discussed with opposing counsel, and a diligent effort has been made to solve the problem informally. Any motion to compel discovery, filed with the Court, shall be accompanied by a statement of counsel describing in detail the efforts which have been made to resolve the discovery problem.
- **H. SANCTIONS:** Failure to comply with the mandatory discovery provision set forth above, failure of counsel to be prepared for a Case Management or Pretrial Conference, or failure of a party or counsel to appear or cooperate in good faith in the conduct of any Case Management or Pretrial Conference, may subject the attorney or party to an award of reasonable expenses, including attorney fees or costs to any party prejudiced by such conduct.
- I. PRETRIAL MOTIONS: All pretrial motions, including but not limited to motion for in camera interview, shall be filed not later than 30 days prior to the date of final or evidentiary hearing except where leave of Court for good cause is granted.

#### **Rule 18: CONTINUANCES**

Rule 41 of the Ohio Rules of Superintendence for the Courts of Ohio established strict guidelines pertaining to continuances of court proceedings. Pursuant to that Rule, no continuances shall be granted by this Court, except for good cause shown. Further, no continuances will be granted unless filed within seven (7) days prior to the scheduled hearing, except in cases of immediate personal emergency. Any motion or request for continuance shall be made in writing and filed prior to the scheduled hearing, unless otherwise authorized by the Court.

- **A. MOTION FOR CONTINUANCE:** The Motion shall contain all of the following:
  - 1. The reason for the requested continuance;
  - 2. A statement that the *non*-moving parties is aware that the motion for continuance is being made, and either consents or objects to the continuance;
  - **3.** A copy of the notice of hearing from the conflicting Court, if the request for continuance is based upon a conflict in court appearances; and
  - **4.** The endorsement of the moving party (i.e., client's approval signature), as well as the signature of counsel for that party, pursuant to Sup. R. 41.

- **B. PROPOSED JUDGMENT ENTRY:** Any request for continuance shall be accompanied by a proposed Judgment Entry which contains <u>all</u> of the following:
  - 1. Approval signature of opposing counsel or party (if unrepresented), or a statement of objection to or why the moving party did not obtain such approval of the continuance;
  - **2.** A statement of:
    - a. The type of hearing continued;
    - b. The date of the original scheduled hearing; and
    - c. The moving party shall also provide a notice to the assignment clerks with blank areas to fill in the hearing date and time. Said Notice will be filed with the Motion.

## **Rule 19: JOURNALIZATION OF ENTRIES**

- A. CASES SETTLED PRIOR TO HEARING: If a matter that is set for hearing or trial is settled by the parties before the hearing, counsel shall reduce the agreement to a Judgment Entry. The Judgment Entry shall reflect that the terms set forth in said Entry are by agreement of the parties and approval of the Court. Except for good cause shown, the parties and counsel shall be required to appear for the scheduled hearing or trial, unless the Judgment Entry is filed prior to the hearing or trial.
- **B.** CASES SETTLED AT HEARING: If a case is settled during the course of a hearing, counsel shall reduce the settlement agreement to writing on an Agreement Form approved by the Court. The parties' in court agreement may be handwritten, but any handwritten agreement shall be detailed and legible. The agreement shall be submitted to, and filed with, the Court. Counsel shall prepare a Judgment Entry which fully comports with the parties' handwritten agreement, and shall file the same with the Court pursuant to Divisions (E) and (F) of this Rule (except when the agreement has been attached to and incorporated into a pretrial order entered by the Court).
- C. SIGNATURES REQUIRED: Signed approval of any Judgment Entry, except one entered by agreement of the parties, constitutes approval of the form <u>only</u> of the Judgment Entry. All Judgment Entries shall be signed by both parties and counsel of record, or shall indicate any person's refusal to sign the Judgment Entry. A party <u>does not need to sign</u> a Judgment Entry if:
  - 1. The party waived signature in writing or on the record;
  - 2. The party previously signed an agreement reflecting the terms contained in the Judgment Entry;
  - 3. The Judgment Entry affects only procedural aspects (except continuances) of the case;
  - **4.** The Judgment Entry adopts or approves a Magistrate's Decision; or
  - 5. The party has filed no responsive pleading or otherwise appeared in the case.

- **D.** COUNSEL RESPONSIBLE FOR PREPARING A JUDGMENT ENTRY: Counsel for the movant or Plaintiff shall prepare the final Judgment Entry, unless otherwise specified by agreement of the parties or order of the Court.
- **E.** TIME FOR PREPARATION/TRANSMITTAL OF JUDGMENT ENTRY: Counsel responsible for preparation of the Judgment Entry shall submit it to opposing counsel within fourteen (14) days of:
  - 1. The hearing relevant to the Judgment Entry;
  - 2. Expiration of the objection period to a Magistrate's Decision; or
  - **3.** Any ruling upon objections to a Magistrate's Decision.
- F. TIME FOR APPROVAL BY OPPOSING COUNSEL: Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the proposed Judgment Entry, opposing counsel or party, if unrepresented, shall approve or reject the proposed Judgment Entry. If approved, opposing counsel or preparing counsel, if a party is unrepresented, shall file the Judgment Entry with the Court immediately. If rejected by the opposing party, counsel shall attempt to resolve any disputes regarding to the proposed Judgment Entry. If a dispute cannot be resolved, either counsel shall transmit the original proposed Judgment Entry to the Court, with a written statement of the opposing party's objections to the proposed Judgment Entry. The Court shall thereafter resolve any disputes regarding to the proposed Judgment Entry.

#### G. FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THIS RULE:

- 1. **Preparing Counsel:** If counsel fails to prepare a Judgment Entry in a timely manner, the Assignment Clerk shall send the attorney a "Notice of Overdue Filing." If the Judgment Entry is still not prepared within the time frame stated in the Notice of Overdue Filing, that attorney will receive a "Notice of Noncompliance," signed by the Judge, noting that sanctions will be imposed if the Judgment Entry is not filed as instructed. If the Judgment Entry is still not timely filed, counsel may be sanctioned.
- 2. Opposing Counsel: If opposing counsel fails to present the proposed Judgment Entry to the Court in a timely fashion, the attorney who prepared the Judgment Entry may unilaterally present the Judgment Entry for signature by the Judge and journalization, with the following certification:
  - a. That submission to the opposing party was made according to the rule;
  - b. The date on which the Judgment Entry was submitted to the opposing party;
  - c. That the opposing party has failed to approve or reject the entry in a timely fashion; and
  - d. Any other information which would assist the Court.

Any Judgment Entry unilaterally submitted to the Court, for approval and journalization, by reason of the failure of a party or opposing counsel to approve the Entry, shall be accompanied by a copy of the prior handwritten agreement of the parties (including the agreement signatures).

In the event the parties encounter unforeseen difficulties with the timely preparation and submission of the Judgment Entry, the parties shall promptly notify the Court of that fact, and shall seek an extension of time in which to timely file the Judgment Entry. The parties may request the Court's assistance in resolving any disputes.

**H. MAGISTRATE'S ORDERS:** All of the above provisions fully apply to preparation and submission of a Magistrate's Order.

## **Rule 20: PARENTAGE AND SUPPORT TIME LIMITS**

Pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3125.58, all actions for parentage or establishment/modification of support must be completed as follows: 75% of all actions shall be completed within six (6) months of filing and 90% of all actions shall be completed within twelve (12) months of filing. The Court may make temporary support orders in such actions upon its own motion or the motion of any party, if the issues are as complex as to require full judicial review or in other appropriate circumstances. Where necessary to comply with this rule and the statutory mandate, the Court may give priority to parentage and support actions. Counsel of record, as officers of the Court, shall expeditiously fulfill all professional responsibilities, so as to assist the Court with complying with the aforementioned time limits.

## **Rule 21: PATERNITY TESTING and ACKNOWLEDGMENT**

- **A.** WHEN TESTING IS REQUIRED: In the event Wife is pregnant during the pendency of a divorce, dissolution, legal separation or annulment case, and one or both parties allege that Husband is not the biological father of the child, paternity testing shall be completed for that child, before any final decree will be entered by the Court. Since testing cannot be completed until the child is born, the case shall be placed on inactive status until the birth of the child. In all other cases, paternity testing may be requested on a case-by-case basis.
- **B.** ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF PATERNITY: In all divorce, dissolution, legal separation, or annulment cases involving any child born <u>prior to</u> the date of the marriage, when paternity is <u>not disputed</u>, both parties shall expressly acknowledge paternity and waive all rights to paternity testing in writing (D.R. Form 15.00 in the Appendix). **Such waiver shall be filed with each party's Request for Temporary Orders.** In the absence of waivers from both parties, the Court may order paternity testing for any child born prior to the marriage.
- **C. ORDER FOR TESTING:** Any order for paternity testing shall substantially comport with Order for Paternity Testing (D.R. Form 14.00 in the Appendix).
- **D. REQUIRED FORMS TO OBTAIN TESTING:** Any time paternity testing will be completed by CSEA, the <u>residential parent</u> shall:
  - 1. Complete a Paternity Testing Information form (D.R. Form 16.00 in the Appendix) and attach that form to the Judgment Entry/Order for Paternity Testing; and
  - 2. Complete an "IV-D Application" (available from the Court or CSEA), and provide that applications to CSEA on or before the date upon which testing is scheduled.

## **Rule 22: APPRAISERS and VALUATION OF PROPERTY**

#### A. APPRAISERS:

- 1. **Real Estate Appraisers:** Real estate appraisals shall be made by licensed real estate agents, brokers, auctioneers, credentialed real estate appraisers, or such other persons who by experience and training are qualified to make real estate appraisals.
- **2. Personal Property Appraisers:** Personal property appraisals shall be made by an auctioneer or by persons who by experience and training are qualified to make personal property appraisals.

#### B. VALUATION OF ASSETS AND DETERMINATION OF LIABILITIES

- 1. Required Evidence: Under Ohio Law, the Court is required to make findings of fact concerning the value of assets and the balance due on liabilities when making a decision dividing property in a domestic relations action. Accordingly, whenever property issues are contested in a divorce, annulment or legal separation action, the parties shall present sufficient evidence to enable the Court to make the required findings in its decision. In the event the parties fail to present sufficient evidence, the Court may order the presentation of additional evidence in the case.
- 2. Readily Ascertainable Values: Either party may present the following types of evidence concerning valuation in any domestic relations case. The Court will not consider the evidence to be conclusive or presumptive evidence or valuation and the other party may present any other relevant evidence concerning valuation to the Court.
  - a. Real Estate: In lieu of an appraisal of real estate, either party may submit a certified copy of the County Auditor's appraisal card showing the market value of the real estate. Such evidence is generally admissible as an exception to the hearsay rule under Ev.R. 803(8) and as a self-authenticating document under Ev.R. 902(4).
  - b. **Motor Vehicles:** In lieu of an appraisal of a motor vehicle, either party may submit a current accurate copy of a reliable internet service appraisal or a current copy of the page of the N.A.D.A. Official Used Car Guide showing the "Avg. Retail" value of a certain model of a motor vehicle. Such evidence is generally admissible under Ev.R. 803(17) as an exception to the hearsay rule.

## Rule 23: EX PARTE ORDERS

- **A. JUDGMENT ENTRY OF INJUNCTIONS:** The Court grants an *ex parte* restraining order entitled "JUDGMENT ENTRY OF INJUNCTIONS" in every divorce, annulment or legal separation case.
  - 1. It is not necessary for a party to file a separate motion for issuance of the Judgment Entry of Injunctions.
  - 2. The standard *ex parte* order granted shall be on Judgment Entry of Injunctions (D.R. Form 3.00 in the Appendix).

- **3.** The Judgment Entry of Injunctions shall be presented to the Court at the time the Complaint is filed.
- **4.** The Judge or Magistrate shall thereafter sign such standard *ex parte* order, and the standard order shall be served on the opposing party with the Summons and Complaint.
- **B.** EX PARTE ORDER FOR PARENTAL RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES: An ex parte order allocating or reallocating parental rights and responsibilities, will be granted only upon affidavit(s) which comply with Division (C)(4) below and which establish that exigent circumstances exist for such an order. The affidavit(s) shall also establish that an ex parte order is in the best interests of the child(ren). In the event the Court overrules the motion on an ex parte basis (i.e., without notice), the Court may consider granting or reallocating parental rights and responsibilities on a temporary basis, after the opposing party has been given notice and an opportunity to respond to the motion. In addition to any other requirements of this rule, the requirements of Rule 13 shall be fully complied with to the extent any of those documents have not been filed in any pending action.

#### C. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL *EX PARTE* MOTIONS:

- 1. **Statement Regarding Counsel:** All *ex parte* motions shall include a statement as to whether the nonmoving party is presently represented by counsel, whether or not that attorney has entered an appearance in the case. If the nonmoving party is represented, the motion shall state the name of the nonmoving party's attorney.
- 2. **Disclosure of Other Orders:** All *ex parte* motions shall disclose any other orders issued by this Court, or by any other Court, which are currently in effect and relevant to the relief requested in the motion. A time-stamped copy of any relevant and current order shall be attached to the *ex parte* motion.
- **3. Efforts to Give Notice:** All *ex parte* motions/affidavits shall disclose the efforts, if any, which have been made by the Movant or counsel to give notice of the issue(s) raised in the motion, and the reasons supporting any claim that notice should not be given. The motion/affidavit(s) shall state whether or not the Movant knows the present residence of the nonmoving party and, if not, what efforts the Movant has made to discover the present address of the nonmoving party.
- **4. Affidavits:** All *ex parte* motions shall be supported by affidavit(s). Supporting affidavits shall be made on personal knowledge, shall set forth such facts as would be admissible as evidence, and shall show affirmatively that the affiant is competent to testify to the matters stated in the affidavit. Affidavits must contain specific facts and information to support the claim for relief and establish that exigent circumstances exist.
- **5. Notice of Right to Hearing:** Any proposed Order granting *ex parte* relief shall contain the following language notifying the nonmoving party of his or her right to request a hearing on the motion:

NOTICE: Any party to this action may request that the Court set a hearing on the *ex parte* motion and order. All requests for hearing shall be made in writing by filing a judgment entry for a notice of hearing and a preacipe with instructions to the clerk requesting service. The foregoing shall be filed with the Court within ten (10) days after service of this Order.

**6. Hearings on** *Ex Parte* **Motions:** In the event a party requests a hearing on an *ex parte* motion, the Court shall set a hearing on an expedited basis, as soon as the Court's docket

may permit. The moving party shall bear the burden of proof that an *ex parte* hearing, and shall present sufficient, competent evidence to establish that continuation of the *ex parte* order is warranted. Evidence at the hearing shall be confined and limited to the issues raised in the *ex parte* motion, except as otherwise permitted by the Court.

## **Rule 24: STANDARD PARENTING TIME ORDER**

A. GENERAL GUIDELINES: When parents separate because of family problems, there is often a period of several months to years during which families are under great stress because of loss, conflict and changes. Most studies show, and psychologists uniformly agree, that the children who "do best" following divorce are from families which maintain a low level of conflict. The absence of conflict can be even more critical than the amount of time either parent spends with the children. For these reasons, the Court encourages parents to discuss all matters pertaining to their child, and attempt to resolve those matters amicably. Parents experiencing difficulty resolving issues relating to the child should seek the assistance of the Court Mediation Office or other professional to attempt to reach an agreement on matters relating to the child.

Children need the continuing and regular involvement of both parents in order to feel loved. In order to enhance and foster each parent's relationship with the child, neither parent should suggest, encourage or require a child to refer to any person other than the child's parents as "mom" or "dad", nor permit any other person to do so.

No specific schedule will satisfy the changing needs of both children and parents over the years. Critical to the success of any schedule is that each parent be flexible, based upon the changing needs of a child as the child grows older and becomes involved in different activities. It is the Court's view that a specific parenting time order is in the best interests of children, in most cases. The Court has adopted a "Standard Schedule for Parenting Time" which provides for the minimum amount of parenting time which the Court considers reasonable, in most cases. However, this schedule may or may not be appropriate in any given case. It is recognized that each situation and each child is different, and it is preferred that parents attempt to tailor the parenting schedule to meet the specific needs of their children. Parties may agree to, and the Court may approve, more or less parenting time than that provided for in this standard schedule. However, any agreement regarding parenting time must contain specific times and dates for parenting time.

When exercising parenting time, a child may exhibit a strong emotional reaction when saying good-bye to either parent. Child mental health professionals concur that this emotional response is generally quite normal, especially with young children, and does not mean that the child does not love the other parent or does not want to spend time with the other parent. Both parents need to calmly reassure the child that the child will see the other parent soon. The length of the adjustment will vary. If a child indicates strong opposition to being with the other parent, it is the responsibility of each parent to appropriately deal with the situation. Parents should comfort and calmly talk with the child, and provide reassurance. Confrontation and unpleasant scenes are to be avoided. If the matter is not settled, either parent should seek the immediate assistance of a mental health professional or Court, mediator or file a motion with the Court. As uncomfortable as this issue may be for a parent, this issue should not remain unresolved. IT IS THE DUTY OF THE RESIDENTIAL PARENT TO TAKE ALL REASONABLE MEASURES TO MAKE SURE THAT THE CHILD GOES FOR THE PARENTING TIME PERIOD.

- **B. SCHEDULE FOR PARENTING TIME:** Parenting time SHALL TAKE PLACE AT SUCH TIMES AND PLACES AS THE PARTIES AGREE. Unless modified in advance, by mutual agreement of both parties, parenting time normally shall not be less than the following:
  - 1. Weekend Parenting Time: Beginning on a specific date, every other weekend from Thursday night at 6:00 p.m. to Sunday night at 6:00 p.m. Specific parenting time for a holiday, day of special meaning or a vacation overrides weekend parenting time, but the alternating weekend schedule shall not change, even if interrupted and overridden by a holiday, day of special meaning, or vacation parenting time. Weekend time that is lost due to a holiday does not have to be made up.
  - 2. Mid-week Parenting Time: In addition, an overnight parenting time period from 6:00 p.m. on Thursday to 6:00 p.m. on Friday (or on such other day or time that the parties agree) during each week that the nonresidential parent does not have the parenting time. The Non-residential parent shall be responsible for transporting the child(ren) to school, daycare, etc., when applicable on Friday morning.

The above weekend and mid-week schedule is summarized on the table below, which shows which <u>nights</u> the child will spend with the residential parent (RP) and nonresidential parent (NRP).

Monday	Tuesday	Wednesday	Thursday	Friday	Saturday	Sunday
RP	RP	RP	NRP	NRP	NRP	RP
RP	RP	RP	NRP	RP	RP	RP
RP	RP	RP	NRP	NRP	NRP	RP
RP	RP	RP	NRP	RP	RP	RP

- 3. Parenting Time on Days of Special Meaning:
  - a. **Mother's and Father's Day:** Mother's Day shall always be spent with the mother and the Father's Day shall always be spent with the father, regardless of which parent is entitled to the weekend. If the parties cannot agree on times, the times are 9:00 a.m. to 7:30 p.m. The child shall spend the remainder of the Mother's or Father's Day weekend with the parent who has regularly scheduled parenting time for that weekend.
  - b. **Child's Birthday:** A child's birthday shall always be spent with the mother in the even-numbered years, and shall always be spent with the father in the odd-numbered years. If the parties cannot agree, the time is 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m., if the child does not have school on the birthday, and 5:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. if the child's birthday falls on a school day. Birthday parenting time takes priority over weekend, midweek, or vacation parenting time. In the event of a conflict between the child's birthday and holiday parenting time, the parent having holiday time with the child shall also have parenting time on the child's birthday.
- **4. Holiday Parenting Time:** Parents may wish to change, by agreement, a holiday to observe family or religious traditions. Unless changed by agreement, holiday parenting times are as follows:

Holiday	<b>Even Years</b>	<b>Odd Years</b>	Time unless otherwise agreed:
Martin Luther King Day	Mother	Father	Sun. 6:00 p.m. – Mon. 6:00 p.m.
Spring Break	Father	Mother	9:00 a.m. on the day after school is
			Released for Spring Break until 6:00
			p.m. of the day before school resumes
Easter	Father	Mother	Sun. 9:00 a.m. – Sun 6:00 p.m.
Memorial Day Weekend	Mother	Father	Fri. 6:00 p.m Mon. 6:00 p.m.
July 4 <sup>th</sup>	Father	Mother	7/3 at 6:00 p.m. – 7/5 at 6:00 p.m.
Labor Day Weekend	Mother	Father	Fri. 6:00 p.m. – Mon. 6:00 p.m.
Halloween – If in the year	Father	Mother	5:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. of the night
Preceding the order, the child			Trick-or-Treat is scheduled in that
Participated in Trick-or-Treat			parent's neighborhood
Thanksgiving	Mother	Father	Wed. 6:00 p.m. – Sun. 6:00 p.m.
1 <sup>st</sup> Half of Winter Vacation,	Mother	Father	6:00 p.m. on the day that school is out
including Christmas Eve			for Christmas vacation to 9:00 a.m. on
			Christmas Day
2 <sup>nd</sup> Half of Winter Vacation,	Father	Mother	9:00 a.m. on Christmas Day until 6:00
including Christmas Day			p.m. on the day before school is
& New Years' Eve/Day			scheduled to restart after the school
			break

All references to "school" in the holiday section above, refer to the schedule of the school where the child attends. If the child is not yet attending school, the public school schedule for the district where the child resides shall apply.

#### 5. Vacation Parenting Time:

- a. **Length:** The nonresidential parent shall have twenty-eight days of vacation parenting time each year. Vacation parenting time shall be exercised in a block of not less than one (1) week (seven days), and the nonresidential parent has the right to determine the duration of the block of vacation parenting time. In no event shall the nonresidential parent utilize more than two (2) of the residential parent's weekends when scheduling vacation parenting time.
- b. When Exercised: With regard to any child of school age, the nonresidential parent's vacation parenting time shall be exercised between June 1<sup>st</sup> and the seventh day before commencement of the child's new school year, unless otherwise agreed by the parties or ordered by the Court. With regard to a child who is not of school age, vacation parenting time may be exercised any time of the year, except during holiday time allocated to the residential parent.
- c. **Residential Parent Notification:** So as to facilitate scheduling and minimize conflicts, the residential parent shall deliver to the nonresidential parent, in writing, and no later than March 1<sup>st</sup> of each year, all information (including schedules, if available) concerning potential summer activities for the parties' minor child. Scheduling of summer activities shall be discussed by the parties, which discussions shall consider the desires of the child, family traditions, work schedules of the parents and the child, etc.
- d. **Nonresidential Parent Notification:** The nonresidential parent shall, no later than April 1<sup>st</sup> of each year (or 60 days prior to the start of the vacation parenting time if the child is not in school), deliver to the residential parent, in writing, the dates he/she wishes to exercise vacation parenting time. This notice, and the notice of potential

- summer activities, shall be delivered by one party directly to the other, and shall not be sent through the child.
- e. **Priority of Parent's Schedules:** The nonresidential parent's choice of vacation parenting time has priority over the residential parent's choice, unless the residential parent's vacation is an annual mandatory shut-down of the place of employment, or unless the residential parent is required by an employer to give more than sixty day's notice of intent to take a vacation and the nonresidential parent has no similar requirement.
- f. **Summer School:** Required summer school of a child does not bar or otherwise alter the parenting time schedule set forth herein. If the child must attend summer school during the nonresidential parent's parenting time, the nonresidential parent shall make sure that the child meets all attendance requirements for summer school.
- g. **Contact Information:** If either parent takes the child outside the county in which that parent resides, for a period of 24-hours or more, that parent must provide the other parent with the destination, times of arrival and departure, method of travel, and a telephone number where the child can be reached in case of emergency.
- h. **Residential Parent's Interim Parenting Time:** In the event that the vacation parenting time of the nonresidential parent lasts 28 consecutive days or more, the residential parent shall be entitled to spend two (2) consecutive days (forty-eight hours), with the child at the approximate midpoint of the vacation parenting time. The nonresidential parent's vacation parenting time shall be extended accordingly, to constitute the full twenty-eight days of vacation parenting time. The interruption of the nonresidential parent's vacation parenting time shall not apply if it interferes with his or her vacation travel plans, or if the parents reside more than 150 miles from each other.
- i. **Residential Parent's Out-of-Town Vacation:** The residential parent shall be entitled to take two (2) weeks out-of-town vacation per year which is uninterrupted by midweek or weekend parenting time. This vacation may be exercised in minimum increments of one (1) week. The residential parent shall not be required to make-up any missed weekend or midweek parenting time associated with his or her out-of-town vacation. The residential parent shall give thirty (30) days advance notice of any out-of-town vacation time exercised under this provision.
- j. **Resumption of Weekend Schedule:** The alternating of weekends shall not be affected by intervening vacation parenting time periods of either parent, and the rotation shall continue as initially established, unless the parties agree otherwise.
- k. **Priority of Other Parenting Time Periods:** Neither party shall schedule vacation with the child during the other parent's designated time for a holiday or day of special meaning.

#### C. MISCELLANEOUS PARENTING TIME ISSUES:

- 1. **Priority of Parenting Time Periods:** In the event of any conflict between parenting time allocated to each parent under this Rule, the following order of priority shall govern, with (a) being the highest priority and (d) being the lowest priority:
  - a. Holidays and Days of Special Meaning;

- b. Vacation Time;
- c. Weekends; and
- d. Midweek Parenting Time.
- 2. Cancellation of Parenting Time by Nonresidential Parent: Except in case of emergency, the nonresidential parent shall give the residential parent 24-hours advance notice of any cancellation of parenting time. A parent who does not give timely notice of cancellation of parenting time forfeits that period of parenting time. Nothing in this provision prevents a nonresidential parent from scheduling make-up parenting time, when parenting time must be canceled by the nonresidential parent because of an emergency or other unforeseen circumstance.
- **3. Keeping the Children Together:** All brothers and sisters subject to the same parenting time order shall participate in parenting time together, unless otherwise agreed by the parties, or unless one child is too ill to leave home for parenting time.
- **4. Ending Parenting Time Early:** The nonresidential parent shall not return the child, prior to the end of the parenting time period, unless the parties agree in advance. The residential parent shall not attempt to terminate parenting time prematurely, without agreement, by arriving early to pick up the child.
- 5. Transportation: The nonresidential parent shall transport the child at the start of the parenting time period, and as provided in B (2) above. The residential parent shall transport the child at the end of the parenting time period. This means that the parents, unless otherwise agreed to by both parents or unless ordered by the Court, shall share the transportation of the child equally. A parent, if unavailable for the pick-up of the child, shall have a responsible adult, well known to the child, provide substitute transportation for the child. All child restraint laws must be complied with by any person driving the child. No person transporting the child may be under the influence of drugs or alcohol. Only licensed drivers shall drop off/pick up at the parents' homes. If the child is to be picked up from a daycare or school facility which requires written consent for the pick up, the residential parent shall sign such written consent prior to the commencement of any parenting time period.
- 6. **Promptness:** Each parent shall be prompt for pick-up of the child. Neither parent shall be more than thirty (30) minutes late to pick up the child. A nonresidential parent who is more than thirty (30) minutes late loses that particular parenting time period, unless the tardiness is for good cause, and unless the nonresidential parent gives notice of the tardiness and a reasonable estimated time of arrival. In order to avoid forfeiture of that parenting time period, the notice of tardiness must be given no later than 30 minutes after the scheduled start of parenting time.
- 7. Make-up Parenting Time: The nonresidential parent shall be entitled to make-up parenting time if, due to an emergency or other unforeseen circumstance, the nonresidential parent is not available at the scheduled time for parenting time and has given required notice of that fact to the residential parent. The nonresidential parent shall also be entitled to make-up parenting time if the residential parent denies parenting time without just cause. All make-up parenting time shall be rescheduled by the nonresidential parent and exercised within sixty (60) days of the missed parenting time, or it is forfeited. The residential parent shall make the child available for all make up parenting time.

8. Clothing and the Child's Appearance: The residential parent is responsible for providing sufficient appropriate clean clothing for every parenting time period. If the planned parenting time activities require special or unusual clothing needs, the nonresidential parent must notify the residential parent in advance. If the child does not own the type of clothing requested, the residential parent is under no obligation to comply with the request. All clothing sent by the residential parent MUST be returned immediately after the parenting time period, in good condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted.

Absent an agreement by both parents, the child's physical appearance shall not be altered during parenting time periods. Examples of this include, but are not limited to, cutting/coloring of hair, tattoos and body piercing.

- **9. Schoolwork:** A parent must provide time for any child to study and complete homework assignments, papers or other school assigned projects, even if the completion of this work interferes with a parent's plans with the child. If schoolwork is assigned by the school prior to the parenting time, the residential parent must inform the nonresidential parent of the school work to be done, so that it may be timely completed.
- 10. Address and Telephone Numbers: Unless the Court orders otherwise, each parents shall keep the other parent informed of his/her current address and telephone/cell phone/pager number, and an alternate telephone number in the event of an emergency. Absent an order of the Court, no parent shall put a block on his/her phone prohibiting the other parent from calling. Answering machines for both parents are encouraged, in order to facilitate communication. If either parent takes the child outside the county in which that parent resides, for a period of 24-hours or more, that parent must provide the other parent with the destination, times of arrival and departure, method of travel and a telephone number where the child can be reached in an emergency.
- 11. Illness or Injury of a Child: If a child is too ill to leave home for parenting time, the residential parent shall give the nonresidential parent notice of that fact at the earliest available time. The nonresidential parent shall be entitled to make-up parenting time with the child under the provisions in Paragraph 7 above.

The residential parent shall keep the nonresidential parent informed of any health condition of the child which necessitates mediation or treatment. The residential parent shall provide the nonresidential parent with any necessary prescription medication or treatment instructions prior to the start of the parenting time period.

- 12. Communication between Parents: Parents, whenever possible, shall communicate directly with one another concerning parenting time issues. In the event parents cannot communicate effectively with one another, the parents shall utilize alternative methods for communication such as: (1) communicating in writing only; (2) engaging a third party to assist in their communications; or (3) seeking professional assistance, including but not limited to the Court's mediation services.
- 13. Children's Activities: Regardless of where the child is living, the child's participation in extracurricular activities, whether school-related or otherwise, shall not be interrupted because of parenting time. The parent with whom the child is residing at the time of an activity shall transport the child to the activity, unless otherwise agreed by the parties, in advance of the parenting time period. Each parent shall fully inform the other parent of

any organized activities of the child, in advance, complete with a schedule and the name and contact information for any activity leader, if available.

#### 14. Child's Records and Activities:

- a. **Name:** The residential parent shall use the child's birth or adopted name only, on the child's records.
- b. **Records:** The residential parent must list the nonresidential parent as the mother or the father of the child on all formal records of the child. The residential parent must also authorize the school to release to the nonresidential parent any and all information concerning the child, if such release is required for the nonresidential parent to obtain information concerning the child.
- c. Access: The nonresidential parent shall have the same access to the same records, same school activities and any daycare center attended by the child, on the same basis as said records or access is legally to the residential parent, unless a restrictive order has been journalized by the Court.
- 15. Telephone Calls: Unless otherwise ordered by the Court, each parent shall be permitted regular telephone contact with the child. At a minimum, each parent has the right to talk with the child no less than twice a week for no more than one-half (1/2) hour during each contact. Phone calls should be made during the child's normal waking hours. If the child is unavailable for conversation, each parent shall require the child to timely return the call.

In addition to any telephone calls received from a parent, a child is permitted and shall be encouraged to call a parent no less than twice a week. However, the decision to call shall ultimately be left to the child. The child's telephone privileges are not to be used by either parent to convey messages to the other parent. Parents shall not discipline a child by restricting telephone contact with the other parent.

16. Noncompliance with Court Order: The duties and rights of parents outlined in this schedule may be enforced by the Court upon the filing of the appropriate motion by either party. Under Ohio Law, a parent may not withhold parenting time because the other parent does not obey another Court order (for instance, to pay support, medical bills, etc.). A parent may seek enforcement of a periodic child support by contacting the Erie County Child Support Enforcement Agency. The failure of any party to obey a Court Order may subject the violating parent to Court-imposed sanctions or penalties, including fines, jail, payment of attorney fees and costs and other appropriate relief.

#### 17. Relocation:

- a. **Permanent Relocation of a Child:** The residential parent may not permanently relocate a minor child outside of the state of Ohio, over the objection of the nonresidential parent, without prior approval of the Court. Whether the residential parent will be permitted to permanently relocate a child outside of the state of Ohio, over the objection of the nonresidential parent, will be determined by the Court on the basis of the best interests of the child.
- b. **Notice of Intent to Relocate:** The residential parent must notify the nonresidential parent, in writing, any time he or she changes his or her residence from that of the county in which he or she resided at the time of the last parenting order. Said notice

must be given in writing, at least forty-five (45) days in advance of the relocation. This Court has designed forms to be used by the residential parent to make the relocation notification (D.R. Forms 6.00 and 13.00 through 13.30 in the Appendix). The procedure for making the notification and the forms are available from the Court upon request.

- c. Modification of Parenting Time Schedule: If the proposed relocation makes the existing parenting time order impracticable, the parents shall attempt, in good faith, to reach an agreement on any revision of the existing schedule. Any agreed revision shall be reduced to a Judgment Entry, and shall be submitted to the Court for approval and filing. If the parties cannot reach an agreement, either party may file a motion to modify parenting time with the Court.
- 18. Implementation of New Schedule: Rule 24, as set forth above, constitutes the standard schedule of parenting time of the Court. The Court reserves the right to modify the parenting time schedule upon the filing of a motion by either party. The current version is intended to be prospective in application only. However, the Court, in addressing any motion for modification of parenting time, would generally adopt this schedule of parenting time, upon the request of either party, unless any party proves by a preponderance of the evidence that another schedule would serve the best interests of a child. If adoption of this schedule of parenting time expands the nonresidential parent's parenting time rights, a modification of parenting time standing alone shall not constitute sufficient evidence for a deviation of the nonresidential parent's child support obligation. Evidence of a specific monetary amount associated with the expanded parenting time is required for a deviation from child support computed pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3119.
- 19. Attachment of Rule to Judgment Entries: Anytime a Judgment Entry orders parenting time in accordance with this Rule, a copy of this Rule shall be attached to and incorporated into the Judgment Entry.

## **Rule 25: MEDIATION**

- A. POLICY OF THE COURT: The Court encourages the parties to resolve their differences amicable and to keep the family unit intact whenever possible, or if it is not possible to keep the family unit intact, to foster an environment for the child(ren) which best provides for the child(ren)'s welfare and minimizes the child(ren)'s exposure to parental conflict. To that end, the Court encourages the use of mediation. As officers of the Court, it is the duty of the attorneys of the parties to encourage their clients to participate in the mediation process in good faith. Whenever possible, parents are encouraged to meet their mutual responsibilities to their child(ren) through agreements, rather than by relying upon judicial intervention. The objectives of any mediation ordered by the Court shall be to:
  - 1. Avoid needless conflict between the parties;
  - 2. Encourage productive, cooperative problem-solving between the parties;
  - 3. Enhance effective communication between the parties;
  - **4.** Require the parties to act responsibly; and
  - 5. Minimize lasting emotional damage to the parties and especially their child(ren).

- **B. SCOPE OF MEDIATION:** Issues involving visitation/parenting time and the allocation of parental rights and responsibilities of minor children shall be mediated. Other issues in domestic relations or parentage cases may be mediated, if agreed by the parties and approved by the mediation coordinator, or if ordered by the Court.
- C. HEARINGS DURING MEDIATION: The Court will not schedule or conduct any hearing on any parenting issue (including the allocation of parental rights and responsibilities, visitation/parenting time, contempt, child support or other related matters), or order any investigations or examinations during the pendency of mediation proceedings, except for good cause shown.

#### D. MEDIATION PROCEDURE:

- 1. **Referral to Mediation:** Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code §3109.052 and the inherent authority of the Court, the Court may refer the parties to mediation:
  - a. At any time after service of summons in any action for divorce, legal separation, annulment or parentage, in which the allocation of parental rights and responsibilities of minor children or parenting time is an issue;
  - b. At any time after the filing of a post-decree motion to modify or allocate parental rights and responsibilities, to terminate a shared parenting plan, or to modify parenting time; or
  - c. At any time after service of process in any other action in which the Court has jurisdiction over children under Ohio Revised Code §2151.23.

Additionally, parties may participate in the Erie County Common Pleas Court Mediation Program when the Court has ordered the parties to mediate their differences prior to the filing of any motion with the Court.

- 2. Assessment: An initial mediation assessment shall be conducted upon referral of the Court. If it is determined that the parties qualify for mediation, the Court may order any or all of the parties to participate in mediation. Upon issuance of the mediation order, the mediation coordinator shall assign a mediator to mediate the dispute between the parties, and the parties shall fully cooperate with the mediator during the mediation process.
- **3. Time Limit for Mediation:** The mediation shall be completed by the mediator within ninety (90) days from the date of the mediation assessment, unless extended by the Court for good cause shown.
- 4. Mediation Agreements: In the event the parties reach a verbal agreement during the course of mediation, the Mediation Office shall reduce that agreement to writing and forward the written agreement to the parties and their attorneys, within seven (7) days of the mediation session where the agreement was reached. At the same time that the Mediation Office sends the written agreement to the parties and counsel, the Mediation Office shall file a Mediation Report with the Court, informing the Court that the parties had reached an agreement through mediation. Upon receipt of a Mediation Report which reflects that an agreement has been reached, the Court shall schedule a Mediation Status Conference. The parties and counsel shall attend the Mediation Status Conference, unless an agreed Judgment Entry containing the parties' mediated agreement is filed with the

Court, prior to the date of the Mediation Status Conference. At the Mediation Status Conference, the Court shall inquire concerning the status of the agreement. In the event the Mediation Status Conference does not result in a signed agreed Judgment Entry, approved by the Court, the Court shall either refer the matter for further mediation or terminate mediation and return the case to the Court's active docket.

- 5. Mediation Report: Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code §3109.052(B), a Mediation Report, indicating whether or not an agreement had been reached on any of the issues that are the subject of the mediation, shall be filed in every mediation case. In the event that a case is referred for further mediation following the Mediation Status Conference, a Supplemental Mediation Report shall be filed at the conclusion of the additional mediation. The Mediation Report and Supplemental Mediation Report shall be in the form specified by the Court. The parties' agreement shall not be forwarded to the Court with any mediation report or docketed in the case by any party, unless the agreement has been signed by both parties. The mediation report shall be considered by the Court to the extent permitted by Ohio Revised Code §3109.052(B).
- **E. QUALIFICATION OF MEDIATORS:** Mediators shall meet the qualifications of mediators set forth in Rule 16 of the Rules of Superintendence for the Courts of Ohio, effective November 24, 1997, or as thereafter amended.
- **F. CONFIDENTIALITY:** Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code §2317.02(H) and §3109.052(C), and as thereafter amended, any communication made in the course of, and relating to the subject matter of the mediation is confidential, and the mediator cannot be required to give testimony before the Court. However, the mediator may be required to give testimony in a separate criminal, delinquency, child abuse, child neglect, or child dependency proceeding.

## **Rule 26: HOME INVESTIGATIONS**

- **A. POLICY OF THE COURT:** After Rule 25 has been complied with, either party may request or the Court may order a home investigation concerning the best interest of any child(ren) in contested parenting proceedings. The home investigation shall be completed by a person appointed by the Court.
- **B. REQUEST FOR HOME INVESTIGATION:** A home investigation shall be initiated by the filing of a Request for Home Investigation (D.R. Form 9.00 in the Appendix).
- C. COST OF ANY PAYMENT FOR HOME INVESTIGATION: Each party shall deposit his or her portion of the cost of the home investigation, including travel expenses, with his or her attorney, or such other person designated by the Court, within fourteen (14) days of the Home Investigation Judgment Entry. Unless otherwise ordered by the Court, the deposit for the home investigation and travel expenses shall be divided as follows:
  - 1. In a contested divorce, annulment or legal separation action, each party shall deposit one-half of the cost of the home investigation.
  - 2. In a post-decree case, the party filing the motion shall deposit the full amount of the cost of the home investigation.
  - **3.** Any travel expenses of the home investigator shall be deposited by the party living outside Erie County.

Travel expenses may be billed by the home investigator in advance of the investigation, and if so billed, the party's attorney shall immediately disburse requested travel expenses. Upon completion of the home investigation report, the home investigator shall bill the appropriate party's attorney for the home investigation cost and any unpaid travel expenses. The party's attorney shall pay that sum directly to the home investigator immediately upon receipt of the billing, but no later than thirty (30) days of receipt of the billing. A current schedule of costs for home investigations and travel expenses shall be approved by the Judge and kept on file with the Court.

- **D. REPORT OF HOME INVESTIGATOR:** No later than seven (7) days prior to the Final Pretrial Conference scheduled with regard to any disputed parenting time issue, the Home Investigator shall submit a written report to the Court which contains his or her recommendations regarding any disputed parenting time issue. Upon receipt of the report, the Home Investigator Coordinator shall contact the attorneys for both parties and advise them that the report is available for their review. Confidential copies of the report shall be available, upon request, to the attorneys for the parties. However, upon receipt of the same, the attorneys are expressly prohibited from making or disseminating any copies of the confidential home investigation to any other person, including the client. It is within the discretion of the Court to assess copy costs to the requesting party, prior to release of any report copy.
- **E. TESTIMONY OF HOME INVESTIGATOR:** In the event either party desires the home investigator to testify at any hearing in the case, that party shall contact, in writing, the Court's Home Investigator Coordinator no later than ten (10) days prior to trial. Failure to timely secure the appearance of the home investigator by contacting the Court may result in the unavailability of the home investigator at trial, except through issuance of a subpoena.

## **Rule 27: GUARDIANS AD LITEM**

- **A. POLICY OF THE COURT:** In order to determine the best interest of minor children in any domestic relations or parentage actions, the Court may appoint a Guardian Ad Litem upon its own motion or upon the motion of either party. The Court will appoint a qualified individual to serve as Guardian Ad Litem.
- **B. NOTICES TO GUARDIAN AD LITEM:** Upon appointment, counsel for both parties and the Assignment Clerk shall notify the Guardian Ad Litem of all proceedings. It shall be the responsibility of counsel to serve the Guardian Ad Litem with copies of all pleadings filed after the appointment. Any additional expense incurred by the Guardian Ad Litem due to counsel's failure to notify, including the cost of transcripts, may be charged to the party responsible for the failure.
- C. DEPOSIT FOR AND PAYMENT OF FEES: The Judgment Entry/Magistrate's Order appointing the Guardian Ad Litem shall specify any deposit which must be made in advance for fees and who shall pay said deposit. All payments for the services of the Guardian Ad Litem shall be payable through the IOLTA account of counsel as specified in the Judgment Entry/Magistrate's Order.
- **D. STATEMENT OF FEES:** The Guardian Ad Litem shall provide statement(s) to the Court and counsel for both parties showing the number of hours spent performing duties, a general description of the duties performed, the cost of services billed to date, any payments for services received and any balance due for services. Upon the filing of such statement(s), the Court will authorize disbursement of the deposit(s) for the payment of Guardian Ad Litem fees. The Court may require additional deposits for Guardian Ad Litem fees from time to time, and

the final order on the matter shall contain a provision regarding payment of any outstanding Guardian Ad Litem fees. Guardian Ad Litem fees are in the nature of child support and are not to be considered dischargeable in any bankruptcy proceeding.

- E. REPORTS OF GUARDIAN AD LITEM: No later than seven (7) days before a final hearing on the matter regarding which the Guardian Ad Litem has been appointed, the Guardian Ad Litem shall submit a written report to the Court which contains his or her recommendations regarding any disputed custody or parenting time matter. The Court may grant exceptions to this requirement upon written request and for good cause shown. In the event the child's wishes or concerns are in opposition to the Guardian Ad Litem's recommendation, the Guardian Ad Litem shall specifically notify the Court of that fact in the report. Upon receipt of the report, the Court will contact the attorneys for both parties and advise them that the report is available for their review. Confidential copies of the report shall be available, upon request, to the attorney for the parties. However, upon receipt of the same, the attorneys are expressly prohibited from making or disseminating any copies of the confidential report to any other person, including the client. It is within the discretion of the Court to assess copy costs to the requesting party, prior to release of any report copy.
- **F. DUTIES OF THE GUARDIAN AD LITEM:** Upon appointment, the Guardian Ad Litem in every case shall perform certain basic duties, identified below. The Guardian Ad Litem shall not act as counsel for the child unless specifically appointed in that capacity by the Court. The feasibility of some of the duties will depend upon the age(s) of the child(ren) and the specific circumstances of the case. Therefore, it is within the discretion of the Guardian Ad Litem to tailor the duties to the facts of the individual case. The basic duties include:
  - 1. Interviewing the child(ren) and observing each parent with the child(ren);
  - 2. Reviewing pleadings and consulting with each attorney as to position and issues;
  - 3. Investigating all significant persons and interviewing those persons independently;
  - **4.** Obtaining and reviewing records (i.e., home investigation, school, criminal, medical, psychological, and child protective service agency);
  - **5.** Performing home visits in each parent's home, if any allegation is made regarding the children's living environment (this may be done in conjunction with the interview process):
  - **6.** Evaluating the necessity of any psychological evaluations or counseling, and making a recommendation regarding those matters;
  - 7. Communicating with any child protective services personnel;
  - **8.** Attending or reviewing relevant portions of any depositions, Court hearings or conferences regarding the best interests of the minor child(ren); and
  - **9.** Filing a written report with the Court containing a recommendation regarding the disputed custody or parenting time issues, unless a verbal report is permitted by the Court.

The Guardian Ad Litem shall maintain all information received from any confidential source as confidential, and shall not disclose the same except as the law permits.

## **Rule 28: PARENTING AND CHILDRENS SEMINARS**

#### A. PARENTING SEMINAR:

- **1. When Required:** Both parents shall complete the Court-sponsored Parenting Seminar within the time limits set forth below:
  - a. **Divorce, Dissolution, Legal Separation or Annulment with Children:** Within forty-five (45) days after completion of service of process in any divorce, legal separation or annulment with children, or within forty-five (45) days after the filing of a dissolution of marriage action, but no later than the date of the first scheduled mediation session or the final hearing, whichever occurs first.
  - b. **Parentage and Post-Decree Actions:** Within the discretion of the Court, the Court may order the parties to attend the Parenting Seminar.
- **2. Exemption from Attendance:** Any parent who has attended the Court-sponsored Parenting Seminar within one (1) year prior to the filing of any action specified above shall be exempt from the attendance requirements set forth above. A parent may also be excused from attendance by the Court, upon a showing of good cause.

### 3. Procedure for Seminar Registration:

- a. **Divorce, Legal Separation and Annulment Cases:** Following the issuance of temporary orders, the Court's Assignment Clerk shall schedule each parent's parenting seminar and notify counsel for each party or the parties (if unrepresented by counsel) of the date and time of the Parenting Seminar.
- b. **Dissolutions:** Upon the filing of the action, counsel filing the action shall secure dates for each parent's parenting seminar from the Assignment Clerk, and counsel shall thereafter notify each party of the date and time of the parenting seminar. In the event neither party is represented by counsel, the Court's Assignment Clerk shall schedule and notify each parent of the date and time of his or her parenting seminar.
- c. **Parentage and Post-Decree Actions:** In the event the Court orders the parties to attend the Parenting Seminar, the Court's Assignment Clerk shall schedule each parent's parenting seminar and shall notify counsel for each party or the parties (if unrepresented by counsel) of the date and time of the parenting seminar.
- **4. Failure to Attend:** A party failing to attend, without exemption, may be subject to contempt proceedings. Further, a final Order or Judgment shall not be entered in the case, until both parties have attended the Court-sponsored Parenting Seminar, or the Court has excused the attendance of one or both parties, for good cause shown.
- **5. Proof of Attendance:** Upon completion of the seminar, each parent shall receive a certificate evidencing attendance at the seminar a copy of which shall be submitted to the Court.

#### **B. CHILDRENS SEMINAR:**

- 1. When Required: Children ages 5-8 or 9-12 shall complete the Court-sponsored Children's Seminar when issues of allocation of parental rights and responsibilities are in dispute.
- **2. Exemption from Attendance:** Any child who has attended the Court-sponsored Children's Seminar within one (1) year prior to the filing of any action specified above shall be exempt from the attendance requirements set forth above. A child may also be excused from attendance by the Court, upon a showing of good cause.
- **3. Procedure for Seminar Registration:** At the Case Management Conference, Pre-trial, or upon order of the Court, the entry will contain the date and time for the Children's Seminar for the particular child's age group.
- **4. Failure to Attend:** A party failing to procure the attendance of their child(ren), without exemption, may be subject to contempt proceedings. Further, a final Order or Judgment shall not be entered in the case, until the children have attended the Court-sponsored Children's Seminar, or the Court has excused the attendance of the child(ren), for good cause shown.
- **5. Proof of Attendance:** Upon completion of the seminar, each child shall receive a certificate evidencing attendance at the seminar.

## **Rule 29: HEALTH EXPENSE**

**A. COMPUTATION OF HEALTH CARE BILLS:** A Health Care Expense Worksheet (D.R. Form 12.00 in the Appendix) for computation of each parent's portion of a bill shall not be filed with the Court, but it may be used by the parents when transmitting bills to each other for payment.

## **Rule 30: SUPPORT ORDERS**

- A. MANDATORY SUPPORT LANGUAGE IN JUDGMENT ENTRIES: Any Judgment Entry which contains a child support or spousal support order shall contain language which comports with O.R.C. Chapters 3119, 3121, 3123 and 3125 (or as subsequently amended). The Court suggests use of the language contained on Suggested Language for Child Support Orders (D.R. Form 17.00 in the Appendix), which shall be modified as appropriate, depending upon whether the Judgment Entry includes a child support and/or spousal support order.
- **B.** CHILD SUPPORT COMPUTATION WORKSHEET: Any child support order shall have a copy of the Child Support Computation Worksheet which was used to calculate the child support obligation, attached to the Judgment Entry as an Exhibit. The attached Computation Worksheet shall be fully completed, accurately calculated, and signed and properly notarized when appropriate.
- C. DEVIATIONS FROM GUIDELINES COMPUTATION WORKSHEETS: Any proposed Judgment Entry containing a deviation from the attached Computation Worksheet shall contain the deviation language (or substantially similar language) contained on Required Language for Deviations for Child Support Purposes (D.R. Form 18.00 in the Appendix).

**D. SUPPORT OBLIGATIONS FOR SHARED PARENTING PLANS AND DECREES:** Any proposed Shared Parenting Plan and Decree in which the parents agree to deviation from the Child Support Computation Worksheet amount shall contain a provision which addresses how the expenses of the minor child(ren), beyond food and shelter, will be paid.

## **Rule 31: IN CAMERA INTERVIEWS OF MINOR CHILDREN**

- A. REQUEST FOR INTERVIEW: Any party may request that the Court conduct an *in camera* interview of a minor child in any action concerning allocation of parental rights and responsibilities or parenting time, by filing a written request at least 30 days prior to final pretrial unless leave of court is granted for good cause. UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE PARTIES BRING A MINOR CHILD TO THE COURT FOR AN *IN CAMERA* INTERVIEW, OTHER THAN AT THE TIME SCHEDULED BY THE COURT FOR AN *IN CAMERA* INTERVIEW.
- **B. PERSONS PRESENT DURING INTERVIEW:** No person, other than the Judge or Magistrate conducting the interview, the child, and any other person specified by the Judge or Magistrate, shall be present during the *in camera* interview of a minor child, pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3109.04.
- **C. RECORD OF THE INTERVIEW:** A record of all *in camera* interviews shall be made by stenographic means or by tape recording. Upon completion, the record of the interview shall be deemed sealed and shall not be disclosed, except upon specific Court order. This Rule is in furtherance of the legislative purpose and intent of O.R.C. Section 3109.04.

## **Rule 32: ATTORNEY FEES**

#### A. CHILD SUPPORT AND PARENTING TIME CONTEMPT ACTIONS:

- 1. Ordinary Fees: An award of attorney fees is mandatory in child support, spousal support, and parenting time contempt actions pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3109.05, 3109.051 and 3105.18. Counsel need not make a written motion requesting an award of attorney fees in those types of actions. Generally, the Court considers attorney fees not in excess of \$250 to be a reasonable attorney fee award in these types of contempt actions. The Court generally will not require evidence to support an award of attorney fees not in excess of \$250.00 in those cases. The Court may require evidence, however, if it deems evidence necessary in the case.
- 2. Extraordinary Fees: The Court shall retain discretion to consider and award attorney fees in excess of \$250.00 in these types of contempt actions. In order to obtain an award of fees in excess of \$250.00, counsel must present evidence and testimony as described in the Division (B)(2) of this rule.

### B. AWARD OF ATTORNEY FEES PURSUANT TO O.R.C. SECTION 3105.18(H):

- **1. How made:** Requests for attorney fees pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3105.18(H) shall be made in the following manner:
  - a. **Upon Final Hearing:** In the event either party seeks an award of attorney fees upon final hearing in a divorce, annulment or legal separation case, counsel shall provide

an attorney fee statement to the other party prior to the final hearing. The statement shall be itemized and shall describe the services rendered, the time expended for such services, and the hourly rate charged by the attorney (unless a flat fee has been charged, in which case the amount of the flat fee shall be disclosed).

- b. **Interim Fee Awards and Fee Awards in Post-Decree Actions:** A request for attorney fees to prosecute or defend an action shall be made by specific motion. The motion shall state with specificity the legal authority for an award of attorney fees, the reason why fees are being requested, and the amount of attorney fees being sought. The party from whom attorney fees are being sought may file a memorandum in opposition to the motion for attorney fees, no later than seven (7) days before the motion is scheduled for hearing.
- **2. Evidence Supporting the Motion:** The following evidence shall be presented at any hearing regarding attorney fees:
  - a. An affidavit signed by counsel verifying the method by which the fees requested were calculated, including the services rendered, the time expended for such services and the hourly rates for in-Court and out-of-court time (unless a flat fee has been charged, in which case the amount of the flat fee shall be disclosed);
  - b. Testimony from the client as to whether the services billed were actually rendered;
  - c. If the fees are sought because of any complex legal or factual issues, testimony concerning the existence of those issues; and
  - d. Evidence of the parties' respective incomes and expenses, if such evidence is not otherwise disclosed during the course of the hearing.
- **3. Expert Testimony:** Unless specifically required by the Court, expert testimony shall not be required to prove the reasonableness of the fees, although it may be required to prove other aspects of the motion for fees. Either party may elect to present expert evidence in support of or in opposition to a motion for attorney fees.
- **4. Failure to Comply:** Failure to comply with the provisions of this rule may result in a denial of the motion for attorney fees.

# RULE 33: CIVIL PROTECTION ORDER MODIFICATION AND DISMISSAL

**A. POLICY OF THE COURT**: Either party to a Civil Protection Order may file to modify a protection order as provided herein. The requirements of Section C apply to requests to dismiss filed by Petitioner only.

#### B. MOTION TO MODIFY CIVIL PROTECTION ORDER

### 1. Required Pleadings:

a. Motion to Modify Civil Protection Order (D.R. Form 20.00 in the Appendix) containing specific reference to the court Orders to be modified with specific reasons

for said modification. Failure to include specific reference and reasons may result in summary dismissal of the motion;

- b. Notice of Hearing (D.R. Form 20.01 in the Appendix); and
- c. Judgment Entry to Modify Civil Protection Order (D.R. Form 20.02 in the Appendix).

## C. MOTION TO DISMISS REQUESTED BY PETITIONER

**1. Hearing Attendance:** The Petitioner must appear and give testimony to the Court explaining the reasons for the request.

## 2. Required pleadings:

- a. Motion to Dismiss CPO (D.R. Form 20.03 in the Appendix); and
- b. Judgment Entry to Dismiss CPO (D.R. Form 20.04 in the Appendix).

# **APPENDIX A**

## Forms Available on the Court's Website: http://www.erie-county-ohio.net/forms.htm.

Affidavit of Indigency for Courts Costs	Form 1.00
Information Form	Form 1.10
Application, Instructions, Financial Disclosure	Form 2.00
Judgment Entry of Injunctions	Form 3.00
Request for Temporary Orders	Form 4.00
Financial Disclosure Affidavit	Form 5.00
Child Custody Affidavit	Form 6.00
Pretrial Statement and Settlement Proposal	Form 7.00
Case Management Conference Order	Form 7.10
Motion and Affidavit to Show Cause	Form 8.00
Motion and Affidavit to Modify	Form 8.10
Request for Home Investigation	Form 9.00
Notice of Filing ECCP	Form 10.00
Request for Copy of Recording of Proceedings	Form 10.10
Judgment Entry for Recordings of Proceedings	Form 10.20
Waiver of Objections to Magistrate's Decision	Form 10.30
Health Care Expense Worksheet	Form 12.00
Notice of Intent to Relocate	Form 13.00
Waiver of Receipt and Hearing on Notice of Intent to Relocate	Form 13.10
Judgment Entry Permitting Service of Notice of Intent to Relocate	Form 13.20
Judgment Entry Prohibiting Service	Form 13.30
Order for Paternity Testing	Form 14.00
Waiver of Paternity Testing and Legal Rights	Form 15.00
Paternity Testing Information	Form 16.00
Suggested Language for Child Support Orders	Form 17.00
Required Language for Deviations for Child Support Purposes	Form 18.00
Motion to Modify Civil Protection Order	Form 20.00
Notice of Hearing	Form 20.01
Judgment Entry to Modify Civil Protection Order	Form 20.02
Motion to Dismiss CPO	Form 20.03
Judgment Entry to Dismiss CPO	Form 20.04

# DOMESTIC RULES OF COURT

# APPENDIX B

# COST DEPOSITS - SCHEDULE A

Complaint for Divorce, Dissolution and Annulment	\$282.00
Counterclaim, Cross-Claim orThird-Party Complaint	\$100.00
Service by Publication	\$500.00
Subpoena (In county per witness) ————————Foreign county — assessed \$.10 per mile round trip	\$50.00
Motion or Pleading requiring service by clerk-post decree (i.e. Motion for Custody, Visitation, etc. )	\$100.00
Contempt	\$100.00
Appeal to Court of Appeals and Cross Appeal	\$150.00·
CD Audio Recording for Transcript	\$5.00
Request for Home Study	\$100.00
Qualified Domestic Relations Orders (post decree )	\$25.00

Effective Jan. 7,2013

# IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF ERIE COUNTY, OHIO DOMESTIC RELATIONS DIVISION

	Case No.
Plaintiff	
Vs-	Affidavit of Indigency for Court Costs D.R. Form 1.00
Defendant	
	White-New Top, collect costs
	NDIGENCY FOR COURT COSTS
deposit in this case; (2) I further state a	, and duly states: (1) I am not financially able to make therefore I request that the Court waive the court cost s follows:
	gle Family   Double Apartment   Mobile Home
	Own Rent – Monthly Payment? \$
	real estate? No Yes – Value: \$
	s – List the following information for any vehicle you own:
Make Model and Vone	a Lacture following happing and any
Value: \$ Monthly Payment	/, stereo, etc.)?  No Yes – Total Value: \$
•	r:
Last day worked:	
Yes - Employer:	
Take-home pay: \$	
_	nt, disability, social security or public assistance:
	Type:
Are you married?  No Yes – List sp	
Take-home pay: \$	
Take-nome pay. 4	-
information to the Court for an official proces	and correct. I understand that I am furnishing the following eding. I know that if I lie, I can be charged with the crime of at the punishment is up to 6 months in jail and a fine of up to
	Signature of Party
Sworn to and subscribed in my presence th	ils day of
Approved Denied	
Judge/Magistrate Date	Notary Public

# IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF ERIE COUNTY, OHIO DOMESTIC RELATIONS DIVISION

(D.R. Information Form 1.10)

		CAS	E NO:		
PLA1	NTIFF:	DEF	ENDANT:		
ADD	RESS:	ÄDD	RESS:		
TEL.	NO:	TEL.	NO:		
DOB		DOB	;		
SOC	. SEC. NO:	SOC	. SEC. NO:		
ATTO	DRNEY:	ATTO	DRNEY:		
ADD	RESS:	ADD	RESS:		
DATE	E OF MARRIAGE: ☐ CEREMMONIAL ☐ COMMON LAW	CITY	/STATE:		
NOW	SEPARATED? SINCE DATE:				
CHIL	DREN BORN AS ISSUE OF THIS MARRIAGE:		1		
NAMI DOB:		NAM DOB			
CHE	CK HERE IF YOU HAVE CHILDREN AGES 5-8				
CHE	CK HERE IF YOU HAVE CHILDREN AGES 9-12				
PRE\	/IOUS MARRIAGES:	PRE'	VIOUS MARRIAGES:		
EX-S	POUSE:	EX-S	POUSE:		
DATE MARRIAGE ENDED:			DATE MARRIAGE ENDED:		
CHIL	DREN FROM PREVIOUS RELATIONSHIPS:				
NAME DOB:	·	NAM DOB	•		
NAME DOB:		NAM DOB			
としては	— .DREN AND DIVORCE SEMINAR PREFERENCE:				
	WEEKDAY EVENING		WEEKDAY EVENING		
	SATURDAY MORNING		SATURDAY MORNING		

I prefer that my spouse and I are not scheduled together  $^{\perp}$ 

# ERIE COUNTY PUBLIC DEFENDER 220 Columbus Avenue Sandusky, OH 44870

Phone (419) 627-6620

Fax (419) 627-6633

Phone (419)	D.R. Form 2.00	*****
*********	********	
This Section for Office Use Only:		• •
Date Application Submitted:	Next Court Date:	
Name of Person Receiving Services:	Court Being Served:	
Attorney Assigned:	Client Contribution Fee:	*****

# APPLICATION AND INSTRUCTIONS

- 1. You must fill out the application completely. Include as much information as possible. incomplete applications cause delays in the appointment of your attorney.
- 2. You must fully and truthfully disclose your income. Even if you are temporarily not working because you are in Jali, you must report where you have been working and how much you earn. Persons can have some income and qualify for public defender assistance. Further, it is a crime to submit a false affidavit to obtain services. Protect yourself. Be truthful about all disclosures.
- 3. You must disclose the names and income of all persons you live with. Under Ohio Law we must consider household income when determining indigency. Further, under Ohio Law a person cannot be denied assistance solely because a friend living in the home has resource adequate to retain counsel. As such, you need to disclose this information to the best of your knowledge.
- 4. You need to attach your most recent payroll stub to the application. If you are not in jail, and are working, you must provide proof of income. Your most recent payroll stub is sufficient. If you are self employed, then a copy of your last tax return is sufficient. If you are in Jail, you need to provide this documentation to the office upon your release.
- 5. You need to fully disclose what charges and what court hearings you are applying for assistance on. If you have several charges pending, or have charges pending in more than one court, to assure that an attorney is being appointed on all matters, it is your duty to list all courts and charges on your application.
- 6. You will need to submit a new application if you obtain new charges while being represented by an attorney appointed by or through the office. Do not assume that your assigned counsel will continue to represent you on new matters. If a new case arises you will need to submit a new application for the additional case.
- 7. You should attach copies of any court papers you have to your application.
- 8. You must call the Public Defender's Office at least 24 hours after submitting an application. Do not assume that any attorney has been appointed to you simply because you submitted an application to the office. Many times the application cannot be approved because the office has questions about the application. It is your duty to call the office and find out whether the application has been approved. Further, because of the number of applications the office receives, the office needs at least 24 hours to approve an application. If you have a court hearing within 24 hours of submitting an application, it is your responsibility to appear at the Court hearing, on your own, and advise the Court that you are seeking legal assistance and need a continuance to obtain counsel.
- 9. You must sign the application and financial disclosure. Unsigned applications are considered incomplete and cannot be approved unless and until fully completed.
- 10. You must keep the office advised of any changes to your application. If you move, change your phone number, or obtain a new job, you must contact the office and advice us of any changes.

### 11. FEES.

- A. <u>Application-Fees</u>. Under Ohio Law the Court must assess you a \$25.00 Court fee for processing your Public Defender Application. Unless the Judge waives this fee, you will be required to pay the fee to the Court in accordance with the Court's order. Do not submit this fee to the Public Defender's office.
- B. Contribution Fees. Separate from any fee imposed by the Court, you may be assessed a fee by the Public Defender's office as a condition of representation by the Office. The amount of the fee will be determined by the Public Defender based on the information provided in your financial affidavit. Payment of any fee assessed by the Public Defender's office must be paid directly to the Public Defender's office, by a money order made payable to "The Erie County Treasurer."

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.

Address of Contact Person

PERSONAL INFORMATION	
Name of Person Receiving Services	Maiden Name, Prior Name, or Alias
Date of Birth	Social Security Number
Address of your residence (include city, state, and zip)	Address to be used for mailing (if not to residence)
If incarcerated, address of the Institution	Inmate Number
If on Parole, Name of Parole Officer	If on Probation, Name of Court you are on Probation for, and Name of Probation Officer
Home Telephone	Cell Phone
Number of People living in your home	
Name of Your Employer	Address of Your Employer
· Work Telephone	What days and hours/shift do you typically work
If unemployed due to disability, what is the type of Disability	How long have you been disabled
If applicable, the name of your Alternate Payee	If applicable, the address of your Alternate Payee
If not employed, and not disabled, name of person Currently Paying your living expenses	Relationship to person assisting with living expenses
Name of Emergency Contact Person	Relationship to Contact Person

· Telephone Number of Contact Person

### CASE INFORMATION

The Erie County Public Defender's Office handles cases in the Erie County Court of Common Pleas, Juvenile and General Divisions, the Erie County Court in Milan, the Huron Municipal Court, the Sandusky Municipal Court, and the Vermilion Municipal Court, as well as Mayor's Courts in Erie County. If you are applying for an attorney on cases pending in more than one court, you will need to advise us of all courts where you have cases pending.

I have the following charges pending in	(Name of the court)
•	
Charge	Case Number
. Charge	Case Number
	Case Number
Charge	
Charge	Case Number
. I also need an attorney for charges pending in the	following court:
Charge	Case Number
Charge	Case Number
	•
Charge	Case Number
Charge	Case Number
	ed:
If out on bond, what type and amount of bond post	(Cash, surety (ball through bondsman), property, of own recognizance (O.R.)
	property, or own roods
If bond was through a bondsman, the name of the	bondsman:
	the cash:
If cash was posted, the name of the person posting	The cash.
If you are not out on bond, what should we know to	o help try and get you out on bond:
	als that may have been charged with you:
Co-Defendants: What are the names of other peop	
Alleged Victims: If you know, what are the names	of any possible victims in this case:
,	
I HAVE READ THE ABOVE NOTICE AND REALIZE	MY RESPONSIBILITY THEREIM.
CLIENT: DA	TE:
OLIENI.	

# FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE/AFFIDAVIT OF INDIGENCY (\$25.00 application fee may be assessed—see notice on page 5)

	• •			-						mana Salasan an	STREET, STREET	
				过南位	E91211/4							D.O.B.
Name/Applicant	ALLEGE PROPERTY AND ADDRESS OF THE PARTY AND A			Party	Represent	ed (if a	appli	cant,	enter	same	<del>.</del> . J	υ.υ.σ.
Mailing Address				City		·····			State		Zip	
•					<u> </u>		Mar	2000	Dhan	a (with	 hin ⊿i	3 hours)
Case No.			.	Phone			vie:	ssage )	; F((U))	e (Miri	.,,,,,	, 1100137
				<u>(                                    </u>	1,							
							-		esessas en Gira			
	***************************************				MACHEN				D.O.E		Rel	ationship
Name	D.O.B	•	Relatio	nship	Name 3)				٥.٥.١	·	1,01	21101101111
1)		-				<del></del>						
2)					(4)							
		•										
	n anaaa		CVO 676	3(3) E	COMVIEN		3 5 1		ol (Tight			
	unernern.	1.10.011二名於是	1445-22-144	Spc	use (or Pa	arents	17	Oth	ier Hoi	ısehol	d	T-1-!
Type of Income	F	pplicar	ıt	appi	icant is a	juvenil	e)		Memb	ers		Total
Employment (Gross)						-		<del> </del>				
Unemployment Worker's Compensation	·											
Pension/Social Security												
Child Support												
Works First/TANF												
Disability . Other				<del> </del>								
Employer's Name (for all h	ousehol	memb	ers)	.·!					2.7.1	INCO*		\$
								Phon		NCON	/I E	. 4
Employer's Address						•	` .	( )	ı <del>C</del>			
			4								A	4
				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				المعاوسومي				
SEESILVEYAR BOWARIS SIE						are if	T THE	1100				
Type of Expense	Ar	nount	-[			•					٠	
Child Support Paid Out Child Care (if working only	1		⊢ т	otal In	come-Allo	wable	Expe	enses	=Adju	sted T	otal	ncome
Transportation for Work										<del>,</del>		
Insurance				_	A. TOTAL	INCOL	ηE_		<del> </del>		<u>\$</u> \$	<del> </del> .
Medical/Dental					B. EXPEN	o E O				<del> </del>	Ψ	-
Medical & Associated Cost of Caring for Infirm-Family	S				•							
Members				= (	C. ADJUS	TED TO	ATC	LINC	OME		\$	
					•							
B. TOTAL EXPENSES		\$			···········				<u> </u>			
			/ LASS		FORWAT	0 ()						
Type of Asset	STATISTICS INSTITUTED	Descr	ibe/Length	of Owr	ership/Make	a, <u>Model</u>	Yea	r (whe	re appli	cable)	Est	imated Value
		Price:		Date	Purchase	ed:						
·		Amt.	Owed:\$					<u>.</u>				
Real Estate/Home								····		-		•
Stocks/Bonds/CD's											<del> </del>	
Stocks/Bonds/CD's . Automobiles Trucks/Boats/Motorcycles												
Stocks/Bonds/CD's Automobiles Trucks/Boats/Motorcycles Other Valuable Property		-										
Stocks/Bonds/CD's Automobiles Trucks/Boats/Motorcycles Other Valuable Property Cash on Hand		-	1100	•								
Stocks/Bonds/CD's Automobiles Trucks/Boats/Motorcycles Other Valuable Property Cash on Hand Money Owed to Applicant		-										
Stocks/Bonds/CD's Automobiles Trucks/Boats/Motorcycles Other Valuable Property Cash on Hand Money Owed to Applicant Other Checking Acct. (Bank/Acc	#)											
Stocks/Bonds/CD's Automobiles Trucks/Boats/Motorcycles Other Valuable Property Cash on Hand Money Owed to Applicant Other	:. #) .cct. #)			•								

	EFERTIFIED IN THE STATE OF THE SERVICE OF THE SERVI					
Type of Liability - Amount						
Rent/Mortgage	C. ADJ. TOTAL INCOME \$					
Food	D. TOTAL ASSETS					
Electric	D. TOTAL ASSETS					
Gas	E. LIABILITIES & OTHER \$					
Fuel	E, LIABILITIES & CITIZA					
Telephone .	\$25.00 APPLICATION FEE NOTICE					
Cable	By submitting this Financial Disclosure Form/Affidavit					
Water/Sewer/Trash Credit Cards	of Indigency Form, you will be assessed a non-					
Loans	refundable \$25.00 application fee unless walved or					
Taxes Owed	reduced by the court. If assessed, the fee is to be paid to the clerk of courts within seven (7) days of					
Other	submitting this form to the court, the public defender,					
- waste tradition	your appointed counsel or any other party who will					
E. TOTAL LIABILITIES & OTHER EXPENSE \$	make a determination regarding your indigency.					
. a office Extraor						
	WATEOUS WOLLDENG STATE OF THE S					
	•					
l,(affiant) being duly sworn, say:						
1. I am financially unable to retain private counsel without substantial hardship to me or my family.						
<ol> <li>I understand that I must inform the public defender or appointed attorney if my financial situation should change before the disposition of the case(s) for which representation is being provided.</li> </ol>						

	I understand that if it is determined by the county, or by the Court, that legal representation should not have been provided, I may be required to reimburse the county for the costs of representation provided. Any action filed by the county to collect legal fees hereunder must be brought within two years from the last date legal representation was provided.
	I understand that I am subject to criminal charges for providing false financial information in connection with the above application for legal representation pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Sections 120.05 and 2921.13.
5.	I hereby certify that the information I have provided on this financial disclosure form is true to the best of my knowledge.
	Affiant's Signature Date
	Notary Public/Individual duly authorized to administer oath: Subscribed and duly sworn before me according to law, by the above named applicant this day of, at, County of and State of
	Signature of person administering oath Title
	I hereby certify that above-noted applicant is unable to fill out and/or sign this financial disclosure/affidavit for the following reason:
	: I have determined that the applicant meets the criteria for receiving court appointed counsel.
	Judge's Signature Date
	-206R rev. 9/2005

# IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF ERIE COUNTY, OHIO DOMESTIC RELATIONS DIVISION

	Case No.
Petitioner	
-vs-	D.R. Form 3.00
Defendant	

### JUDGMENT ENTRY OF INJUNCTIONS

WHEREAS, it is the policy of this Court that in every domestic relations case the parties should refrain from annoying, harassing, molesting or otherwise interfering with each other, and that the property, rights and interest of the parties should be preserved for proper division, determination or allocation according to law, it is therefore ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED as follows:

- 1. Each party is enjoined from annoying, harassing, molesting or otherwise interfering with the other party.
- 2. Each party is enjoined from selling, transferring, withdrawing, conveying, assigning, spending, encumbering, pledging, bequeathing, divesting, wasting, concealing or otherwise disposing of any of the property of the parties.
- Each party is enjoined from altering, modifying or otherwise changing in any manner the beneficiaries or owners of any insurance or annuity policies, financial accounts, profit-sharing plans, pensions (including IRA and Keogh accounts) or other financial instruments, accounts or interests of any party.
- 4. Each party is enjoined from changing, disrupting, canceling, discontinuing or changing the name on any utility account or service, including cable television.
- 5. Each party is enjoined from incurring debt or credit in the name of the other party.
- 6. Each party is prohibited from changing the child(ren)'s residence to a state other than the State of Ohio.
- 7. If any tax returns are required by law to be filed during the pendency of this case, the parties shall cooperate with one another with regard to the filing of such tax returns. Any tax returns filed during the pendency of this case shall be filed in the manner which results in the maximum total refund or minimum total liability for both parties, absent an agreement or Court Order providing otherwise.

IT IS SO ORDERED, antil further Order of the Court.

THE OF MALOTONE AND	•••	
JUDGE/MAGISTRATE		
2020211011		

# IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF ERIE COUNTY, OHIO DOMESTIC RELATIONS DIVISION

			case No.
	Plaintiff		
	VS-		D.R. Form 4.00
	Defendant	•	•
	•		RARY ORDERS
Ord	Now comesers in this case:	and reques	ts that the Court enter the following Temporary
1.	EXPENSES: The expenses of the pa	arties be paid as	follows:
	PLAINTIFF		DEFENDANT
	PARENTAL RIGHTS AND RESPON temporary residential parent and lega reasons:	ISIBILITIES: _ al custodian of th	be named the ne parties minor child(ren) for the following
	should and for the following reasons:	I have parenting.	time with the parties' minor child(ren) as follows

					bof#	
3,	per month (total including processing fee) calculation or as follows:	_ should pay ) pursuant to	y child suppo the attache	rt in the ame d Ohio Child	Support Gu	idelines
					•	
					•	•
			•			
4.	SPOUSAL SUPPORT: per month, plus processing fee. This sum	_ should pa is necessary	y spousal su / because:	pport in the	amount of s	<b></b>
		•			•	
					•	
5.	OTHER ORDERS: I request the following	1 other temp	orary order(	s) and my re	easons for re	equesting
٠.	those Order(s) are:	,	, ,			• .
	•		•			t.
			•		4	
					,	
		Sigi	nature of Par	ty Making P	roposal	
					,	
		<del></del>				
		Sigi	nature of Co	unsei	•	

### <u>NOTICE</u>

The Defendant has fourteen (14) days after receiving this request for temporary orders to file his or her own request for temporary orders. Failure to do so within that time period will result in issuance of temporary orders based solely upon the information before the court, absent good cause shown.

# IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF ERIE COUNTY, OHIO DIVISION OF DOMESTIC RELATIONS

				Case	No	
Plaintiff /	Petitioner (1)	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		CSEA	No	•
DOB	SS#			COLA		
		,		Judge	· •	
Address				Magis	trate	
Marital				111.00		
Residence	☐ Yes ☐ No Phone	-			•	
Attomey						
Atty. Address						
SC ID#						
Atty. Phone						
	V.	•			•.	•
	1/D 1111					
Defendan	t / Petitioner(2)/Resp	ongent				
DOB	SS#			Affic	lavit of Inco	eme,
						Property of
Address	•			D.R.	Form 5.00	
						1
		٩	-		(Your	· Name)
Marital . Residence	□Yes □ No Phone		ı			
Attorney			:	Date o	of Marriage	
Atty. Address			Į.			·
SC ID#				Date o	of Separation	
Atty. Phone						
		•				
		•				
legal s under	ordance with Local Rules 2.0: separation and dissolution. It r a continuing legal duty to file a additional page(s).	2 & 2.03 of this Court, this an must also be filed at the lime an updated version of this fo	ffidavit must be of the Answer orm if you learn	filed and or tempo of any ac	served upon the othe rary hearing, whichev iditional information.	er party with every divorce, ver comes first. You are If more space is needed,
1. Informa	tion Required for Su	pport Calculation:		······································	-	
A. Minor o	r Dependent Children	of this Marriage	· (inc	lude ado	oted children and any	child of the
			par Date of E	ries who	s over 18 and handlo Male/Fernale	win Residing with the
	(中部) (1915年)		Tillion of Section 113 Test 144			
					<u>,</u>	
			<u></u>			1
B. Other M	linor Children Living in	n My Household		200 A	Hemale/Lemate	# InRelationship de
ANNERSKEIC	Und:25/Nameassameassa	脚oderare secritivita	ELECTE: OFF		erecent to the second s	
		· Ir	l nifialed		Financial Disc	closure Affidavit Page' 1

C. Other Minor Cl							
Child's N	lame	Social	Security#	Date of Birth	Male.	/ Female	Residing with
,	٠.						
		<u> </u>					
							•
II. Child Support	t Guideline A	\djustmen	<u> t:</u>	•			
•			Hus	band / Father	ļ		Wife / Mother
				Figures Per Year)		(A.	Il Figures Per Year)
Court Ordered Child	Support Vou Pa	y for Other	<u> </u>		<del> </del>		,
Child(ren) in Another		ty tor Outer			.		
, ,		D-116			<del></del> -  ⊦		
Court Ordered Spous Former Spouse	sai Support You	Pay to a			1		under the control of
• •		. 47 1					
Number of Your Other	er Dependent C	hildren			$\neg \mid \mid$		
Living With You From	i a Previous Ma	rnage or			_		· [
Relationship				•		,	
Court Ordered Child	Support Volu Do	ceive for			<del></del>  -		
the Dependent Child				•	] [		Transfer of the Control of the Contr
Above	(1611) TOU ITUICA	ted our mue					
YDOAC					<del></del>		
Child Care Expenses	You Pay for Ch	ild(ren) of				•	
this Marriage (Employ	vment Or Educa	ational-					1
Related)	yn 1011c or 2222						
rivideday							
Local Income Taxes	Paid or Rate of	Tax where			-		
you Live or Work			\$	<u>%</u> ·		\$	%
•			•	•			
Self-Employment Tax	(5.6% of A.G.I.	.)					
Health Insurance Pre		en (Family			.		
Plan Cost Less Indivi	dual Plan Cost)						
			,				* 1
Name, Address, Pho	ne No. of Insura	nce					
Company				· .			
						-	
•						-	and the second s
				•			<u>-</u>
							ĺ
					\		
*Notice to party	to copy insu	ırance car	d.				
7,00,00 10 p=. 1,							
III. Income [As d	efined in O l	R-C 3113.:	215/A)1:				•
iii. iiicome [As u	cilica in On		~ 10(2 x)1.				
A. Gross Yearly In	come from F	mployment	t				
A. Oross rearry in			-			•	
<b></b>							
☐ I have no inco	me trom empioy	/ment.					
	Constant Des		anch antimate	od figuro			
If not known, plea	se esumate. Pu	and / Fathe	each eaumaic	Last year		W	ife / Mother
Last Year	กขอม	and / Faule	31	Gross Yearly			
Gross Yearly				Income			
Income					-		
Employer				Employer	1		
Employer							
المسمال ٨ ماطغمم	•			Payroll Address			
Payroll Address		<del></del>		1 Gyron / Garage			
City State 7in				City, State, Zip			
City, State, Zip		resonativeness			errea area		
Year-to-date		Through		Year-to-date		•	Through date of
Gross income		<b>Q</b> **		Gross income			ļ
المرادي المردين	1		I	1		. 1	1

Initialed \_\_\_\_\_ Financial Disclosure Affidavit Page 2

B. Annual Overtin	ne, Commissi	ons, Bonuses (If n	ot knov	vn, please estimate. P	ut "EST" after eac	ch estima	ited figure.)
Husband / Father					Wife / Moth		
Year 3 is Most	Tidsband ( ) d	Overtime, commission,		Year 3 is Most	D lysses	Overti	me, commission,
Recent Year	Base Income	Bonuses		Recent Year	Base Income	Bonus	25
Year 1				—Year 1		<del>  -</del> -	
Year 2				——Year 2			
——Year 3				:Year 3			
Y-T-D This Year Through:				Y-T-D This Year . Through:			
	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					- O Americal
C. Gross Self-Em	ployment Inco ent Full Year. Se	me (If not known, pleas ee O.R.C. 3113.215(A)	e estin	nate, Put "EST" after e	each estimated fig	ure.) Us	e Gross Annual
	Husband / Fa				Wife / Moth	er .	
				Name & Nature of			
Name & Nature of Business				Business			
Business Receipts				Business Receipts			
Dualilesa (Accelpta			-	Ordinary &			
Ordinary &		_		Necessary Business			
Necessary Business				Dusilless			
				Net Business	,		
Net Business Income	<u>.</u>			Income			
Y-T-D This Year Through:				Y-T-D This Year Through:			
` I have no other	rincome			•			
All other income, ac	tual or expected	additional employmed, including pension, so curring capital gains, undeceived from a prior spot	cial se	curity, workers comp			
	Husband / Fa	ther			Wife / Moth	ier	
, Des	scribe	Per Year		. De	escribe		Per Year
	5						
							, <u></u>
					······································		
E. Benefits of Em	ployment (Us	e of company car, count	y club	memberships, stock o	options, etc.)		
	Husband / Fa	•			Wife / Mot	her	
Be	nefits	Values		В	enefits		Values
	-			1			
			$\dashv$				
	<u> </u>		$\dashv$		****	,4	

IV. Affiant's Monthly Living Expenses
List your ACTUAL expenses for your present household. Give estimated expenses if you don't have exact figures. If you expect changes soon, list your ANTICIPATED expenses in your household after the divorce case. Explain why you expect your expenses to change. Also, if you are living with your parents or someone is helping you with your living expenses, please explain.

There are nowAdults and living in my present household.	dChildren	! am assisted with my living expenses by:	The reason I expliving expenses to	ect my household o change soon is:
				}
111	Actual or Anticipated	B. Other Necessary	Actual or	Anticipated
A. Housing	(Circle One)	Living Expenses		le One)
Rent or First Mortgage		FOOD, ETC.:  • Gracery (include food,		,
(circle which one)		paper & cleaning products,	:	
Real Estate Taxes (if not		toiletries, etc.) · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
included above)				
Real Estate Insurance (if not included above)	•	TRANSPORTATION, ETC.  • Car Loan or Lease		
Second Mortgage, or home		Gasoline		-
equity, if any	,			
Association Fees Condo/ Lot Rental				
UTILITIES:		Car Maintenance & Repair		
Electric (level billing or avg/ month)				
Gas (if billed separately)		CLOTHING, ETC.:  •Clothes		
Fuel Oil / Propane		Dry Cleaning, Laundry		
Water & Sewer		PERSONAL GROOMING		
- Water a const				
Telephone (basic monthly		Other:		
charge) (average long distance)	•	*		
Cell Phone				**************************************
Trash Collection				
Cable Television				
- Capic Tolevision				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Home Cleaning, Maintenance, Repair	'			
Lawn Service, Snow Removal				
lutanat				
Internet Other:				
	(A)	Other Necessaries Total		(B)
Housing Total C. Child-Related Expenses	Actual or Anticipated	D. Educational Expenses	Actual o	Anticipated
·	(Circle One)	for:	(Cir	cle One)
Child Care, Work-or Educational-Related			You	Child(ren)
Clothing	,	Tuition		
School Lunches		Books, fees, etc.		
Extra-Curricular Activities, Lessons		College Loan Repayment		
Other:		Other:		
Child-Related Expenses	,			
Total	(C)	Education Total		(D)

E. Medical Expenses (out-of-pocket) for	You	Child(ren)
Doctor	<u>-</u>	
Dentist		
Optical		
Orthodontist		
Prescriptions	·	
Counseling		
Other		
Medical Total		. (E)

F. Insurance	Actual or Anticipated (Circle One)
Life	
Auto	
Health	
Disability	
Renters / Personal Property, Other	
Insurance Total	. (F

G. Enrichment (Your expenses. Put child(ren)'s expenses under C or D, above.)	Actual or Anticipated (Circle One)
Entertainment	
Lessons, Sports Clubs, Hobbies	
Books, Newspapers, Magazines	
Donations	
Gifts .	
Vacation, Other	
Enrichment Total	(G)

H. Miscellaneous Expenses (Include expenses and debt payments not previously listed.)	Actual or Anticipated (Circle One)
1.	
2.	·
3.	·
4.	
5.	,
6.	
7.	
8.	
9.	
10.	
Miscellaneou	(H)

Actual or Anticipated (Circle One)

		(Circle One)
	*Grand Total of Monthly Expenses (Sum of A-H in each column)	
Ì		

\*It is very important that you add each section and put a total on these forms.

Initialed ·	Financial Disclosure Affidavit Pag	je:
-------------	------------------------------------	-----

Stop here if post-decree matter.						
OLOP TIOTO II POUL GOOLOG TIMESTE		о нтао	F AFFIANT			
I, Expenses, and Property above is to contempt of court finding against m subject me to criminal penalties for	ue, com	plete, and accurate could result in a jail s	affirm that the informa I understand that falsi sentence and fine, and	rication of inis i	JUCUINEII	r may result in a
• .		•	AFFIAN		•	
		•	AFFIAN	•		•
			a :- dos	, of		
Swo	om to an	d subscribed before	me this day	/ 01		
	•					
		•	Notary Pu	ublic		
			•			
AFFIDAVIT OF PROPERS List ALL YOUR PROPERTY AND For each item, if none, put "NONE space is needed, attach extra pay I. Real Estate Interests:	DEBTS, ." If you	, those of your spous don't know exact fig	se, and joint property ures for any item, giv	and debts. Do re your best es	not leav timate, a	ve any category blank. and put "EST". If more
Address		Titled to Husband,	Present Fair Market Value	Mortgag Balance		Monthly Mortgage Payments
		Wife, or Both	- Market Paras			
A.			•		٠,	
В.			-			
С.				-		
II. Other Assets:					tled to	Present Fair Market
Category		(Also list wh	scription o has possession)	. Mu	sband, life, or Both	Value (Also list balance due on any liens/loans)
A. Vehicles/Novelties Year/Make/Model	(lno	clude automobiles, tro tors, motor homes, e	ucks, motorcycles, bo tc.)	ats,		
1 <b>.</b>						
2.						
3.						
			00 500			
B. Financial Accounts	(lno	clude checking, savir ney market accounts	ngs, CDs, POD accou s, etc.)	ms,		
1.						
2.						
2				-		

- - - tut Pitallanius Affiliavit Dono C

C. Pensions & Retirement Plans	(Include profit-sharing, IRAs, 401K plans, etc. Describe each type of plan.)		
1	Describe eachtype		ŀ
	- ,		
2.			Ì
3.		•	
D. Publicly Held Stocks, Bonds, Securities, & Mutual Funds			•
1.			
2.			
3.			,
	·		
E. Closely Held Stocks & Other Business Interests	(Describe type of business and type of ownership.)		
1.			
2.	•		
	1		3
3.			
	The state of the s		
F. Life Insurance	(Include insurance provided by employer, term, whole life, any cash value or loans.)	<u> </u>	
1.			
	·		
2			
		<u> </u>	
G. Furniture & Appliances	(Estimate value of those in your possession, and value of those in your spouse's possession.) (Attach list if necessary.)	·	
1. In Your Possession			
2. In Spouse's Possession			
	(Give location and describe contents)	T:	
H. Safe Deposit Box 1.	(Give incarrent and describe destruction)		
	_		
2.		<u> </u>	
3.		- ′	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		•

Initialed	

I. All Other Assets	(Include collections, rare books, stamps, guns, antiques, art objects, computers, machinery, personal injury/workers compensation claims, promissory notes, loans to others, tax refunds due, interests in estates or trusts, franchises, copyrights, etc.)	
1.		
2.	_	
J. Transfer of Assets	Explanation: List the name and address of any person (other than creditors listed on your Affidavit) who has received money or property from you exceeding \$100 in value in the past 12 months and the reason for each transfer.	·
1.		
2.		
K. Lost Assets	Explanation: List any item you claim is lost or missing as of this date, and its value.	
1.	·	
2.		

## III. Debts:

List ALL YOUR DEBTS, debts of your spouse, and joint debts. Do not leave any category blank. For each item, if none, put "NONE". If you don't know exact figures for any item, give your best estimate, and put "EST." If more space is needed, attach extra pages.

extra pages.	Name of Creditor /	Total Debt Duel	· Monthly
Туре	Purpose of Debt	As of Date	Payment
A. Secured debts (Mortgages, car, etc.)	Whose Name and State		
1.		·	
2.	4	·	7
3.			
4.			
B. Unsecured debts, including credit cards			
1.			
2.			
3.			
4.			
5.			
6.			
7.			
8.			
9.			
10.			

## IV. Bankruptcy:

	Filed by: Wife Husband, Both	Date of Filing: Case Number	Date of Discharge or Relief from Stay	Type of Case (CH.7, 11, 12, 13)	Current Monthly Payments
1.			-		
2.					

Initialed	Financial Disclosure	Affidavit Page 8
Hilliaicu	1 III CITO CON DISTRIBUTION	

# V. Separate Property Claims: [As defined in O.R.C. 3105.171(6)(A)]

If you are making any claims in any of the categories below, check "Yes" for that category and explain the nature and amount of your claim.

or No]	Yes	No	Description	Particulars leading to your claim of separate ownership	Present Fair Market Value	Present Debt
Inheritances					\$	\$
Property Owned Before Marriage			The state of the s	·	\$	\$
Passive Income and Appreciation from Separate Property					\$	\$ .
Property Acquired After a Decree of Legal Separation					\$	\$
Prenuptial Agreement					\$	\$
Personal Injury Compensation (Except Loss of larital Earnings)				V-10-8-3-	\$	\$
ifts made Solely to One Spouse					\$	\$
tach copies of Fe	ederal, medica	State, a al insura	nd Local tax return, all the at nee card.	tachments, schedules, etc	. from the last	2 years. Also
tach pay stub and Explain why not att	ached.					
tach pay stub and	ached.		OATH OF AFF	IANT		
Explain why not att	rty abov	inst me v	OATH OF AFF  (print) hereby swear or affirm the complete, and accurate. I undersolute could result in a jail sentency fury (O.R.C. 2921.22).	at the information set forth in	document may re	egult in a
Explain why not att	rty abov	inst me v	(print) hereby swear or affirm the complete, and accurate. I under which could result in a jail sentence	at the information set forth in	document may re	egult in a

Notary Public

Initialed		Financial Disclosure Affidavit Page

# IN THE COMMON PLEAS COURT OF ERIE COUNTY, OHIO DOMESTIC RELATIONS DIVISION

IN THE MATTER OF:	CASE NO:
	JUDGE:
	CHILD CUSTODY AFFIDAVIT (UCCJA – D.R. Form 6.00) (O.R.C. Section 3109.27)
following answer to the questions set out her parties in the above styled action for divorce, a	,being first duly sworn according to law, makes the ein relevant to the custody of the minor child(ren) of the limony, annulment, or dissolution or juvenile action.
1. State the full name(s), birth date(s) and so proceedings and the name(s) and address(es)	ocial security number(s) of the child(ren) involved in these of those with whom each child is now residing.
CHILD, DOB, SSN:	
PERSON & ADDRESS:	
CHILD, DOB, SSN:	
PERSON & ADDRESS:	
CHILD, DOB, SSN:	
PERSON & ADDRESS:	
2. Have you participated as a party, witness the allocation of parent rights and responsibil other state?	or in any other capacity, in any other litigation concerning lities of any of the afore named child(ren) in this or any
Answer:	
3. State any information you have about child(ren) pending in a court of this or any other	any parenting proceeding concerning the afore named er state.
Answer:	
4. State the name and address of any person residential parent of any of the afore named of with respect to any of the child(ren).	on not a party to these proceedings who claims to be the hild(ren) or who claims to have custody or visitation rights
Answer:	·
5. State the place where the afore named chand present addresses of the person(s) with w	ild(ren) have lived within the last five years and the names hom the child(ren) lived during that period.
AT/WITH:	
FROM:	

AT/WITH:	
FROM:	Address of the second of the s
AT/WITH:	
FROM:	
6. Do you understand that you have a continuing duty to in concerning the afore named child(ren) in this or any other sta	nform the Court of any parental proceeding te?
Answer:	1
7. Have you ever been convicted of a criminal offense inverse or neglected or have you been determined to be the an adjudication of abuse or neglect? Answer:	olving an act that resulted in a child being perpetrator of an act that was the basis of
	•
	Affiant
Sworn to before me and subscribed in my presence this	day of
•	•
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Notary Public

	Case No		
Plaintiff			•
•			•
-Vs	D.R. Form 7	7.00	
			-
•	,		-
Defendant	-		
PRETRIAL STATEMENT AND	SETTLEMENT	PROPOSAL	-
2. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1.	/ U	r ttor ourse	
INSTRUCTIONS: Each party is required to file a P	retrial Statement/	Settlement Prop	osal <u>no later</u>
than the day of the Pretrial. That pleading should minimum, as applicable to the case.	contain the follow	wing information	at a
minimum, as applicable to the case.			
Now comes	and makes the	following Pretrial	Statement and
Settlement Proposal pursuant to Local Rule 18(E):	•		
STATUS OF D	ISCOVERY:	•	
TYPE OF DISCOVERY:	Not	0	Needs to
Appraisals of any real estate	applicable	Completed .	be done
Appraisals of any real estate . Appraisals of personal property			
Copies of the last three (3) years of federal income			-
tax returns.			Į
Balances due on all liabilities of either or both of			
the parties			
Income information, including overtime for the past three (3) years			
Copies of the most recent statement on all bank			
accounts, IRA's, CD's, stocks, mortgages or other			
assets for which the parties receive a statement			
Pension and profit-sharing plan information and /aluation			
lealth insurance information, including the cost of		•	
COBRA coverage			
Copies of deeds, vehicle registrations or titles			
Other:			
Other:			

OTHER DISCOVERY INFORMATION:	
·	•
•	
DISPUTED FACTUAL OR LEGAL ISSUES:	
WITNESS LIST FOR FINAL HEARING:	
	•
ESTIMATED LENGTH OF FINAL HEARING:	
PROPOSAL FOR SETTLEMENT:	
JURISDICTION AND VENUE:This Court has jurisdiction and venue	e to grant a final decree
of divorce to the partiesJurisdiction and Venue is disputed.	•
durisdiction and vende is disputed:	
GROUNDS: A divorce shall be granted in this case as follows:	
To Plaintiff on grounds of : To Defendant on grounds of:	
	1

ALLOCATION OF PARENTAL RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES:
Sole Allocation of Parental Rights and Responsibilities:To MotherTo Father ORSplit Allocation of Parental Rights and Responsibilities:Mother shall be Residential Parent and Legal Custodian of:
Father shall be Residential Parent and Legal Custodian of: Shared Parenting pursuant to the attached Proposed Shared Parenting Plan
PARENTING TIME: Effective,MotherFather shall have parenting time with the minor child(ren) as follows: Pursuant to Local Rule 24 without modification Pursuant to Local Rule 24 with the modifications contained on the attached Exhibit As set forth on Exhibit
CHILD SUPPORT: Effective
HEALTH EXPENSES: The health expenses of the minor child(ren) shall be paid as follows:  Any uninsured health expenses of the minor child(ren) shall be divided between the parties in the following percentages: Father% Mother%
HEALTH INSURANCE:Father and/or Mother shall carry health insurance on the minor child(ren), so long as it is available at a reasonable cost through his or her employment Neither party has health insurance available to them at the present time for a reasonable cost, but each party shall obtain insurance for the children in the future if it becomes available to him or her at a reasonable cost. A Dependent Health Care Order shall be issued in this case.
TAX EXEMPTIONS and CREDITS FOR MINOR CHILD(REN): The tax dependency exemptions and credits for the minor child(ren) shall be allocated as follows:
If awarded, the nonresidential parent shall ONLY be entitled to take any tax exemption for a child allocated to him or her, so long as he or she is current in the payment of his or her child support obligation on or before January 31 <sup>st</sup> . of the year following the year for which the exemption will be claimed.
TEMPORARY SUPPORT ARREARAGES: There is no temporary support arrearage issue in this case. OR The Obligor owes temporary support arrearages and those arrearages shall survive the final decree of divorce and be paid as follows:

SPOUSAL SUPPORT:	
No spousal support shall be paid by either party to, the, the in the sum of \$p support order shall terminate upon the death of either with an unrelated adult person of the opposite gender shall not reserve jurisdiction over the term and	shall pay the spousal support to the er month, plus processing fee. Said spousal party, the obligee's remarriage or cohabitation.  The Court shall
COBRA HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE:	
Neither party will be obtaining COBRA health insur The shall pay for COBRA health insur for a period of from the date The may maintain COBRA health insur	ealth insurance coverage on thee of the final decree of divorce. OR nealth insurance coverage through the
SEPARATE PROPERTY: Each party shall be award or her separate debt as follows:See Exhibit	led his or her separate property and shall pay his OR
To Wife:	To Husband:
•	
	· ·
ATTORNEY FEES:	
Each party shall pay his or her own attorney fees fo Theshall pay the sum of \$ fees. Said sum shall be paid as follows: 	r this case. ORtowards the's_attorney
MAIDEN NAME: The Wife's maiden name shall name is	shall not be restored. Her maiden

MARITAL PROPERTY DIVISI	ON: The parties' marital a	ssets and debts should	be divided as
follows:See Exhibit	AWA  Value or Balance  \$	RD TO or PAID BY:  To Wife  \$	To Husband
	\$ \$ \$ \$	\$ \$ \$	5 5 5 5
	\$ \$ \$	\$ \$ \$	\$ \$ \$
TOTALS	\$	\$	\$ · \$ · ·
, .	Ψ	- Annual - A	-
RESTRAINING ORDERS: No permanent restraining ordMutual permanent restraining from harassing, molesting or inter	orders shall issue in the fir	nal decree of divorce pro	ohibiting either party
OTHER ISSUES:		_	
See Exhibit There are no other agreemen	· OR ts between the parties.		
COURT COSTS:	<i>:</i>	·	
By Plaintiff By Defend	ant Split between t	he parties equally.	
Plaintiff/Defendant	CO CERTIFICATE OF SE	unsel for Plaintiff/Defen	dant
I hereby certify that a true co served upon the opposing party c 20	nv of the foregoing Pretrial	Statement and Settlem	ent Proposál was of,
<del>-</del>		ounsel or Party	

•	Case No:
Plaintiff	
-VS-	Judge Robert C. Delamatre
	Case Management Conference Order D.R. Form 7.10
Defendant	D.R. Form 7.10
D-K	
Date:	
Case Management Conference held. The follow	ving parties and counsel appeared:
3	,
The likely contested issues are:	
The parties made the following admissions an	

The following discovery is anticipated:
A.D.R. possibilities:
Family Divorce Services referral:
Other:
<u> </u>
IT IS ORDERED THAT
This Order shall be considered as an authorization for the release of information on behalf of the named parties to the following:
and
Either or both parties by signing this document agree to

This authorization shall terminate sixty (60) days	s after the date of this Order.
It is further ordered that the following children ( Divorce: A Workshop for Children (pursuant to ru	who are ages 5-12) attend: Children and le
	f said workshop to be mailed to the parents).
(Date and time of	I Said Mouvation to be trigued to and barranes).
COUNSEL/PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THE	SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE STATEMENT ORDER
Discovery to be completed by:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Pretrial Conference Hearing Date:	
Trial/Final Hearing Date:	-
	TIDAE
	JUDGE
	I I I A Angel Angel S Tolking
	MAGISTRATE
Plaintiff	• •
	•
Counsel for Plaintiff	
Defendant	
Circumstant Defaulture	
Counsel for Defendant	•

ALL MOTIONS NOT SCHEDULED FOR HEARING PRIOR TO THE FINAL PRE-TRIAL SHALL BE DISMISSED PURSUANT TO RULE 41.

		Case No.
-		•
	· Plaintiff	Judge
		<del></del>
	· -Vs-	·
		Motion and Affidavit to Show Cause D.R. Form 8.00
	Defendant	
1.	Now comes Plaintiff Defendant in	the above-captioned case.
2.	This court issued an Order in this case	, and I have attached a true
	and accurate copy of this Order to this Motion	on.
ຸ3.		to comply with that Order in regards to the following:
	(Check the box that applies to the other party.)  Child support	
	Spousal support	
	Parental rights and responsibilities	
	Responsibility for debts Distribution of property	
		•
4.	The other party has violated that Order as f	ollows: (be specific)
	-	
•		
٠		

WHERE	FORE, I request the court to Order th	at the 🔲 Plaintiff [	Defendant be cited to appear	
before the co	ourt and show cause why he/she shou	ld not be punished fo	r contempt of court, and further,	
that he/she b	e found to be in contempt of court; th	at the party in conten	npt be:	
	Ordered to comply with the court Or Incarcerated Fined Pay the court costs of this Motion And any other relief deemed appropr			
•				
		(Your signature along w	ith address and telephone number)	
STATE OF OH	) ss:			
Affia	int, being first duly sworn, deposes a	and says:		
	ear that the above statements in the	•	ico are true to the heet of my	
T 24A	ear that the above statements in the	: Motion to Snow Cat	ase are true to the pest of my	
knowledge, in	formation, and bellef.			
		Affiant		
` Swort	n to before me and subscribed in my p	oresence this	day of 20 .	_
		Notary Public		
	REOUEST	FOR SERVICE.		
certified mail, r	copy of the foregoing Motion and the return receipt requested, or  person the following address:		County Sheriff's	_

Case No.
<del>_</del> .
***************************************
Judge
Order to Appear and Show Cause D.R. Form 8.00
y ORDERED to appear before this court, located at the Erie County
ve. Sandusky Ohio, on the day of,
v cause why he/she should not be held in contempt of court for
Orders.
Tudaa

		Case No.
	Plaintiff	Judge
	-VS-	
<del></del>		Motion and Affidavit to Modify D.R. Form 8.10
	Defendant	
1.	Now comes Plaintiff De	efendant in the above-captioned case.
2.	This court issued an Order in thi	(date of the original court Order)
3.	I am hereby requesting to modificate (check the box that applies to the other	fy that Order in regards to the following: party)
	Child support Spousal support Parental rights and resp Temporary Orders as to Temporary Orders as to	debt allocation
4.	The specific modification reques	ted is:
	***************************************	
5.	The specific reasons why the mo	odification is needed are:
6.		and 6.00 as this request does/does not involve children or support.
WHE	REFORE, I request the-court to mo	odify the current Order as set forth above.
	<del>-</del>	(Your signature along with address and telephone number)

				•	
STATE OF OHIO	) ) ss:			•	
COUNTY OF ERIE	)	·			
Affiant, bei	ing first duly sworn, depos	ses and says:			
	at the above statements Ir	•	e true to the best	of my knowledge,	
. I swear tha	If the above statements in	fulc faddir to Fishing in		· .	
information, and bel	ief.				
	•	Affiant			
Sworn to b	pefore me and subscribed	in my presence this	day of	200 .	
Show to a	•			· · ·	
•	·				
		Notary Publ	IC .		
			**		
·	RE	QUEST FOR SERVICE			
	_		Damando	nt by Cortified	
Please serve a copy	of the foregoing Motion requested, or person	and the attached Affidavi	t upon Responde "County Sheriff	s Department,	
the following addres	se:	III Selvice by 113	-	, ,	
			•		
	_	•			

		Case No.	,
		÷	
• •			
Plaintiff	•	Judge	
-VS- ·	,		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Hearing N	Notice
			•
Defendant -			
			· ·
		•	
The parties hereto shall	take notice that a hearing or	n	's Motion shall be
heard on the	_ day of	at	, at the Erie County Common
Pleas Court, Domestic Rela	tions Division, Erie County Co	ourthouse, 323 C	Columbus Avenue, Sandusky,
Ohio.	. •		

REQUEST FOR HOME INVESTIGATION (This form must be completed in its entirety before an investigation will be assigned).

		D.R. Form 9.00
	Case Number	
		•
•		I have/will have deposited \$in
Name of PLAINTIFF/First Petitioner		my law office trust account specifically to pay Home Investigation charges for this action.
Street	-	-
		Attorney Signature
City, State, Zip Code	•	
	_	Attorney for Plaintiff/First Petitioner
Home Phone/Work Phone		
		Telephone
	Vs./and	I have/will have deposited \$ in
Name of DEFENDANT/Second Petitioner	•	my law office trust account specifically to pay Home Investigation charges for this action.
Street	•	
		Attorney Signature
City, State, Zip Code	• ,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
		Attorney for Defendant/Second Petitioner
Home Phone/Work Phone	•	Attorney for Defendant/Second Feddoner
Home Phone, work Phone		
		Telephone
	AND	
		I have/will have deposited \$in
Name of THIRD PARTY - Pitf./Def.		my law office trust account specifically to pay Home Investigation charges for this action.
Street		
		Attorney Signature
City, State, Zip Code		•
		Attorney for Third Party
Home Phone/Work Phone	-	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
TNIVESTICATION DETAILS		Telephone
INVESTIGATION DETAILS Prior family involvement with ECCSB? (Yes/No) Previous Home Investigation? (Yes/No) Judgment Entry filed and paternity Date	25) There will out-of-county narties are in	ne Investigation-\$200.00 (divided in Rule be Additional Expense: If your client is y or out-of-state, or if additional volved.  his is a Paternity (JP) case.
OTHER:		
(Judgo/Magictrate)	<del>-</del>	(Date)
HOTE OULD OFC FOR HOME INVESTIGA	ATION are to boat MITION are to boat MITION are to boat MITION ARE TO BE ATTENDED	pe paid to the Home Investigator upon e set until ALL charges relating to Home
THACOURDING OF LYTH THE LACT.		

•	Case No.
Plaintiff .	Judge
-vs-	
	Notice of Filing D.R. Form 10.00
Defendant	
Now comes	, and pursuant to Civil Rule 8(E)(2) hereby
files the Court Reporter's Statement atta	ached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
•	(Signature of counsel or pro se party)
	CERTIFICATION
I served a true and accurate copy of the represented, upon opposing party, at the	ne foregoing upon the attorney for opposing party, or if not ne following address:
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
•	
	(Signature of counsel or pro se party)

#### COURT REPORTER'S STATEMENT

The transcription of the		,20 hearing before Magistrate
	as ordered, consists	of approximately pages.
I estimate that days	will be needed to pre	epare the transcript for filing.
Date:		
		(Signature of Court Reporter)
		(Please print name)
		(Agency)
	1	(Address)
		(Phone number)

	Case No.
Plaintiff	Judge
-Vs-	
	Request For Copy of Recording of Proceedings D.R. Form 10.10
Defendant	
be, e. idan	
Now comes,	, and pursuant to Local Rule 8(E)(2)(a) hereby requests
	ording of the proceedings held before Magistrate
on the, day of	, 20 Said copy of recording of the
•	se of filing objections to said Magistrate's Decision.
proceedings is being used for the sole purpos	50 or (initial ox) account to 1, in the
	(Signature of counsel or pro se party)
<u>CE</u>	ERTIFICATION
I served a true and accurate copy of the represented, upon opposing party, at the following party.	foregoing upon the attorney for opposing party, or if not owing address:
represented, upon opposing party, at the foil	owing additions.
	(Signature of counsel or pro se party)

	Case No.
	· 
Plaintiff	Judge
-Vs- \	
	Judgment Entry for Recordings of Proceedings D.R. Form 10.20
	_
Defendant	
Whereas, the Movant has reque	sted a copy of the recording of the proceedings before this
Court on befo	ore Magistrate
Whereas, the Movant is requesti	ng said recording for the purpose of filing objections to the
Magistrate's Decision in this matter.	
IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED tha	at Movant shall be provided a copy of the recording of said
proceedings. Said recording shall be	used only for the purpose of filing objections to the
	isseminated or used for any other purpose. Violation of this
order shall constitute Contempt of Court	
Approved:	•
,	
Movant	Judge

	Case No.
Plaintiff	Judge
-Vs-	
	Waiver of Objections to Magistrate's Decision D.R. Form 10.30
Defendant	
	the standard to file
	and hereby voluntarily waive their right to file
objections to the Magistrate's Decision pursua	nt to Local Rule 8(F), to expedite the finalization of
the agreed matters set forth in the Magistrate's	s Decision.
	·
<u> </u>	
Plaintiff	Defendant
Plaintiff's Attorney	Defendant's Attorney

#### HEALTH CARE EXPENSE WORKSHEET - D.R. Form 12.00

CHILD'S NAME:		·		
DATE of service:				
NAME of provider:	-			
WHAT expense was for:				
ORIGINAL total charge by provider:			\$.	
MINUS amount Insurance paid:		٠ , -	\$	
EQUALS uninsured amount:		==	\$	MANAGEMENT S
SUBTRACT any balance of "ordinary" health care expense amount <sup>1</sup> :		-	\$	
EQUALS uninsured "extraordinary" health care expense to be divided between parents:			\$	
EACH parent's percentage of "extraordinary" health care expenses under court order <sup>2</sup> :		MOTHER %	_	FATHER %
MULTIPLY each parent's portion of total uninsured bill (amount in gray box) by each parent's percentage:	\$ .	-	\$	187 W
SUBTRACT any amounts already paid to the health care provider by each parent ON THIS BILL:	-\$		<b>,</b> \$	
EQUALS amount each parent owes to the provider and/or to the other parent as reimbursement:  (if the number is negative, then that parent is owed money by the other parent).	. =\$ [	- Name - Control of the Control of t	\$ <sup>.</sup>	
PREPARED by (check one):				
PROVIDED to other parent on:				
HOW provided:		,		
***COPIES OF HEALTH CARE BILL AND ANY "EXPLANATION OF I COMPANY MUST BE ATTACHED***	BENEFIT:	S" FROM T	HE	INSURANCE

<sup>1</sup>Ordinary Expenses: The first \$100.00 per calendar year per child of uninsured health care expenses, including deductibles and co-pays under insurance, shall be deemed "ordinary health care expenses" and shall be paid by the residential parent of the child.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup>Extraordinary Expenses: Any health care expenses in excess of \$100.00 per calendar year per child shall be deemed "extraordinary health care expenses".

		Case No.
	Plaintiff	
	-VS-	D.R. Form 13.00
<u>,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,</u>	Defendant	
	NOTICE OF INTENT TO RELOCATE O	.R.C. Section 3109.051(G)
In acco	ordance with Ohio Revised Code Section 3109.051(G	), I hereby state as follows:
· 1.	By Judgment Entry dated responsibilities for the following minor child(ren):	
2.	The nonresidential parent of the child(ren) is:	
	and the nonresidential parent's mailing address is:	
3.	My current resident address is:	
4.	I intend to move on	and my new residence address will be:
5.	A completed Child Custody Affidavit is attached to	this Notice.
Dated		Residential Parent
	to and subscribed before me this	day of , ,
	· 	Notary Public

	Case No.
Plaintiff	
VS-	D.R. Form 13.10
Defendant	
	OF RECEIPT AND HEARING
ON NOTICE OF INTENT	TO RELOCATE O.R.C. Section 3109.051(G)
In accordance with Ohio Revised Code	Section 3109.051(G), I hereby state as follows with regard to a
Notice of Intent to Relocate dated	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
1. I am the nonresidential parent of t	he child(ren) named in that Notice.
2. I have received a copy of that Notice	ce of Intent to Relocate.
3. I hereby waiver any further service	e of the Notice of Intent to Relocate and any hearing to
determine whether or not a copy of	the Notice of Intent to Relocate should be served upon me.
-	
Dated	Nonresidential Parent
Sworn to and subscribed before me this	day of ,,
	Notary Public
	noun j i dono

	Case No.
Plaintiff	
-VS-	D.R. Form 13.20
·	
Defendant	
TIDOMENT ENTRY PER	RMITTING SERVICE OF NOTICE OF INTENT
TO RELOCA	TE (0.R.C. Section 3109.051(G)
	•
The Court finds, based upon inf	formation in the Notice of Intent to Relocate dated that there
are no facts which would warrant withh	olding a copy of the Notice of Intent to Relocate, from the non-
residential parent.	
It is therefore ORDERED, that the	he Clerk of Courts shall serve a copy of the Notice of Intent to
Relocate upon the nonresidential parent	t at the address specified in the Notice of Intent to Relocate, by
ordinary U.S. mail.	
	·
	Judge/Magistrate

cc: CSEA

	Case No.
Plaintiff ·	
-VS-	D.R. Form 13.30
Defendant	
	RY PROHIBITING SERVICE OF ELOCATE (O.R.C. Section 3109.051(G))
The Court finds, based upon info	mation in the Notice of Intent to Relocate, that there exist
certain facts which would warrant withho	olding a copy of the Notice of Intent to Relocate from the
nonresidential parent.	
•	•
It is therefore ORDERED that, subje	ect to further order of the Court, the Clerk of Courts shall only
serve a copy of this Judgment Entry upon t	he nonresidential parent, at the address listed in the Notice of
Intent to Relocate, by ordinary U.S. Mail. Th	ne nonresidential parent shall <u>not</u> be sent a copy of the Notice
of Intent to Relocate filed by the residentia	I parent. Notice is hereby given that the nonresidential parent
may request a hearing to determine wheth	ner it would be in the best interest of the minor child(ren) to
permit release of the Notice of Intent to Rel	ocate.
	Judge/Magistrate

rcc: CSEA

	Case No.
Plaintiff	. v
<b>-</b> VS-	D.R. Form 14.00
Defendant	-
ORDER	FOR PATERNITY TESTING
The pleadings in this case reflect	t that may not be born issue of the
parties' marriage. This Court must adjud	icate the paternity issue(s) prior to entering any final decree in
this case.	
Accordingly, for good cause show	wn, pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3111.09, it is hereby ORDERED
that genetic paternity testing shall be cor	nducted in this case. The Plaintiff, Defendant and the minor
child(ren) are ordered to appear at the E	rie County Child Support Enforcement Agency (CSEA), on
, <b>20</b> at	or at such other time or place directed by CSEA, for
said testing. The information regarding th	ne parties is contained on the Paternity Testing Information Form
which is attached thereto.	
.Both parties shall fully cooperate	with CSEA with regard to the testing. The costs of genetic
paternity testing in this case shall be paid	pursuant to O.R.C. Section 3111.09. The residential parent of
the minor child shall complete a "IV-D Ap	plication" and provide that application to the CSEA on or before
he date upon which the testing occurs.	
The Clerk of Courts shall serve a	copy of this Order upon the parties (if unrepresented), counsel
of record and the Erie County Support En	forcement Agency by ordinary U.S. Mail, postage prepaid.
-	
	JUDGE/MAGISTŖATE

		Case No.		
	Plaintiff			
	-VS-	D.R. Form 15.00		
	Defendant			
	WAIVER OF PATERNITY TEST	ING AND LEGAL RIGHTS		
	w comes the undersigned,y of perjury:	and states as follows under oath and		
1.	I understand that this case involves the following	minor child(ren), to wit:		
ż.	I hereby admit and acknowledge that	is the biological father and		
3.	3. I have had my rights to paternity testing and to contest paternity fully explained to me, and I understand those rights.			
4. 	I have had my right to counsel explained to me a I waive any rights I have to counsel (if I am u I acknowledge that I am satisfied with the ad	unrepresented in this case) or		
5.	I specifically waive any right I may have to paterr right to trial with regard to the paternity issue.	nity testing with regard to said child(ren) and my		
·6.	6. I specifically waive any rights or causes of action I now have or may have in the future under Ohio Law (including but not limited to O.R.C. Chapter 3111 or O.R.C. Section 3119.96, et. seq.), to contest the status of the above-named person as the biological father and legal parent of the above-named child(ren).			
7.	7. I understand that by signing this document, I will never be able to request paternity testing with regard to the above-named child(ren) in the future, and that I will be forever barred from legally challenging the paternity of the child(ren).			
8.	I have signed this document voluntarily and with signing this document.	full understanding of the legal consequences of		
Sworn	to and subscribed in my presence this			
		Notary Public		

## PATERNITY TESTING INFORMATION D.R. FORM 16.00 Erie County Common Pleas Court, Domestic Relations Division

•	Date of Testing:	•
	•	
	PARTIES	
•	PLAINTIFF/FIRST PETITIONER	DEFENDANT/SECOND PETITIONER
Name	AND THE RESERVE OF THE PERSON	1
Address		
Home Phone No.		
Work Phone No.		
Attorney's Name	,	
Attorney's Phone		
		·

CHILDREN TO BE TESTED			
NAME(S):	DATE(S) OF BIRTH:	LIVING WITH:	

#### SUGGESTED LANGUAGE FOR CHILD SUPPORT ORDERS

D.R. Form 17.00

It is therefore ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECREED that shall pay
child support in the sum of \$ per month, per child, for child(ren), for a total of
\$ per month, plus processing fee, effective Child support shall
be paid until: (1) the child reaches age 18, if the child is not attending a recognized and accredited high
school on a full-time basis; (2) the child reaches age 19, so long as the child is attending a recognized
and accredited high school on a full-time basis; or (3) until further order of the Court. Support shall be
paid by check or money order and any payment shall include all of the following: (1) obligor's name; (2)
the court case number; (3) the SETS number (starts with a 70 number); and (4) the obligor's social
security number. Payments shall be made to: Ohio Child Support Payment Central, P.O. Box 182372,
Columbus, OH 43218-2372. The obligor may contact the Erie County Child Support Enforcement Agency
(CSEA) at 221 West Parish Street, Sandusky, 0H 44870, for further information about where and how to
remit support payments. The obligee is enjoined from accepting and the obligor is enjoined from making
any support payments which are not paid through Ohio Child Support Payment Central or the Erie Child
Support Enforcement Agency. Any current or delinquent support payment made directly by the
obligor shall be deemed a gift.

WITHHOLDING AND DEDUCTION: All support under this order shall be withheld or deducted from the Income or assets of the obligor pursuant to a withholding or deduction notice or appropriate court Order issued in accordance with Chapters 3119, 3121, 3123 and 3125 of the Revised Code or a withdrawal directive issued pursuant to Sections 3123.24 to 3123.38 of the Ohio Revised Code and shall be forwarded to the obligee in accordance with Chapters 3119, 3121, 3123, and 3125 of the Revised Code.

**NOTIFICATION REGARDING TERMINATION OF ORDER:** The residential parent and legal custodlan of the child(ren) subject to this Order, or the person who otherwise has custody of said child(ren) shall immediately notify, and the obligor may notify, the Erie County Child Support Enforcement Agency of any reason for which this child support order should terminate.

With respect to this Order, a willful failure to notify the Child Support Enforcement Agency is contempt of Court. The reason for which a child support order should terminate includes all of the following:

- (A) The child's attainment of the age of majority if the child no longer attends an accredited high school on a full-time basis and the child support order requires support to continue past the age of majority only if the child continuously attends such a high school after attaining that age;
- (B) The child ceasing to attend an accredited high school on a full-time basis after attaining the age of majority, if the child support order requires support to continue past the age of majority only if the child continuously attends such a high school after attaining that age;
- (C) The child's death;
- (D) The child's marriage;
- (E) The child's emancipation;
- (F) The child's enlistment in the armed services;
- (G) The child's deportation; and
- (H) Change of legal custody of the child.

EACH PARTY TO THIS SUPPORT ORDER MUST NOTIFY THE CHILD SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT AGENCY IN WRITING OF HIS OR HER CURRENT MAILING ADDRESS, CURRENT RESIDENCE ADDRESS, CURRENT RESIDENCE TELEPHONE NUMBER, CURRENT DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER, AND OF ANY CHANGES IN THAT INFORMATION.

EACH PARTY MUST NOTIFY THE AGENCY OF ALL CHANGES UNTIL FURTHER NOTICE FROM THE COURT. IF YOU ARE THE OBLIGOR UNDER A CHILD SUPPORT ORDER AND YOU FAIL TO MAKE THE REQUIRED NOTIFICATIONS, YOU MAY BE FINED UP TO \$50 FOR A FIRST OFFENSE, \$100 FOR A SECOND OFFENSE, AND \$500 FOR EACH SUBSEQUENT OFFENSE.

IF YOU ARE AN OBLIGOR OR OBLIGEE UNDER ANY SUPPORT ORDER AND YOU WILLFULLY FAIL TO MAKE THE REQUIRED NOTIFICATIONS, YOU MAY BE FOUND IN CONTEMPT OF COURT AND BE SUBJECTED TO FINES OF UP TO \$1,000 AND IMPRISONMENT FOR NOT MORE THAN 90 DAYS.

IF YOU ARE AN OBLIGOR AND YOU FAIL TO GIVE THE REQUIRED NOTICES YOU MAY NOT RECEIVE NOTICE OF THE FOLLOWING ENFORCEMENT ACTIONS AGAINST YOU: IMPOSITION OF LIENS AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY; LOSS OF YOUR PROFESSIONAL OR OCCUPATIONAL LICENSE, DRIVER'S LICENSE, OR RECREATIONAL LICENSE; WITHHOLDING FROM YOUR INCOME; ACCESS RESTRICTION AND DEDUCTION FROM YOUR ACCOUNTS IN FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS; AND ANY OTHER ACTION PERMITTED BY LAW TO OBTAIN MONEY FROM YOU TO SATISFY YOUR SUPPORT OBLIGATION.

#### REQUIRED LANGUAGE FOR DEVIATIONS FOR CHILD SUPPORT PURPOSES D.R. Form 18.00

The Court finds that the amount of child support payable by the obligor in this case, pursuant to
the Ohio Child Support Computation, is \$ per month, per child, for child(ren), for a
total of \$ per month, plus processing fee. The Court, after considering the facts and criteria
set for under O.R.C. Section (insert O.R.C. Section 3119.23 or 3119.24), finds that the
amount of child support calculated pursuant to the child support schedule of O.R.C. Section 3119.021,
would be unjust or inappropriate and not in the best interest of the child(ren). The Court finds that a
deviation is warranted in this case pursuant to O.R.C. Section (insert appropriate
subsection of O.R.C. Section 3119.23 or 3119.24) for the following reason(s):
The parties agree and represent to the Court that the aforementioned deviation factor(s) and/or criteria
have a total monetary value of \$ per month, which amount the parties request be adopted by
the Court for purposes of computing a deviation from Computation child support. Based upon the
agreement and representation of the parties, and upon further consideration of all relevant factors set
forth under O.R.C. Section (insert O.R.C. Section 3119.23 or 3119.24), the Court finds that a
deviation from the child support Computation is warranted, as set forth above.

(Continue with Mandatory Language from Form 17.90 if the obligor will actually pay child or spousal support — the language on Form 17.00 is <u>not required</u> if <u>no child or spousal support will be paid</u>).

	Case No.
P- (-)-	
Petitioner	Judge
-VS-	Mation to Modify Civil Dystockics Ouder
	Motion to Modify Civil Protection Order D. R. Form 20.00
Respondent	
Now comes.	, and moves this court to modify the
Civil Protection Order dated	. The reasons for the modification are: (be specific)
-	
,	(Signature of Movant)
Sworn to before me and subscribe	ed in my presence this day of 200 .
	:
	Notary Public
Ē	REQUEST FOR SERVICE /
Please serve a copy of the foregoing Motion by certified mail,	n and the attached Affidavit upon return receipt requested, at the following address:

	•	Car	se No.		
	•	Cas			
	•				
		Jud	lge		
Petitioner				·	•
-VS-			ice of Hearing L Form 20.01	ı	
	. •			•	
				•	
Respondent		·	•		
The parties hereto shall take notice to	hat a hearing on	Petitioner	's Motion to M	lodify/Dismiss	Civil
Protection Order shall be held on		, 200	at	<u>.m.</u> at the	e Erie
County Common Pleas Court, Dom	nestic Relations	Division,	Erie County	Courthouse,	323
Columbus Avenue Sanducky OU					

	Case No.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u>·</u>
<b>v</b> .	_
Petitioner	Judge
-Vs-	Judgment Entry to Modify Civil Protection Order D.R. Form 20.02
	<b></b>
75 Tub 4 Mark 7 Tub 1 Tu	<del>-</del>
Respondent	
	pon the motion of Petitioner to modify the domestic violence Civil Both parties appeared before and requested the court to approve a modification or dismissal for
	3
	hat unless Petitioner agreed to a modification, Respondent would be preponderance of the evidence that a modification of the Civil
Upon hearing, the court finds the dismissed in part, as follows:	at the Civil Protection Order specified above shall be modified, or
OR DISMISSED HEREIN SHALI ENFORCED BY LAW ENFORCEME	CIVIL PROTECTION ORDER NOT SPECIFICALLY MODIFIED L REMAIN IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT AND SHALL BE NT OFFICERS IN ACCORDANCE WITH LAW.
T IS SO ORDERED.	
opies to: Petitioner or attorney Other	Judge/Magistrate
Respondent or attorney Other	

	_	
<u></u>	_	Case No.
		•
	···	Judge
Petitioner		
		i e
-VS-		Motion To Dismiss CPO D.R. Form 20.03
	_	
		•
,		
Respondent		
	*E	
	s the case herein and	vacate and dismiss all Orders issued
prior.		
		Postal
		Petitioner
Copy: Petitioner		
Respondent		

	Case No.
	Judge
Petitioner	
-VS-	Judgment Entry to Dismiss CPO D.R. Form 20.04
, h	
Respondent	
weapons are returned to the Respondent,	request, represents that there exists no danger if and asks the court to dismiss the case herein.  case is dismissed without prejudice and all Orders
herein are vacated and dismissed. The	Erie County Sheriff is authorized by Order herein to custody pursuant to the Order of this court to the
Approved:	
	•
Petitioner	Magistrate
. •	·
<u> </u>	Judge
Copy: Petitioner  Respondent  Erie County Sheriff	
Attorney for Petitioner Attorney for Respondent Sandusky Police Department	
Perkins Police Department Victims Assistance	
File	,

#### Local Rules of Court - Erie County Court of Common Pleas - Domestic Relations Division

- 1. Can be purchased from the Clerk of Courts for \$15.00
- 2. Can be found at the Sandusky Public Library located just to the south of the Courthouse (across the street).
- 3. Can be found on line as follows:
  - a. <u>www.erie-county-ohio.net</u> (Note: Mid October website will change to <u>www.eriecounty.oh.gov</u>. Currently both sites contain the same information.)
  - b. Look on the left side and select "Printable Forms"
  - c. On the 4th line select "Common Pleas Court Forms"
  - d. Near the top select "Domestic Relations"
  - e. Click on the "down arrow"
  - f. Select "Local Rules of Court"
  - g. Read or print. Write down what forms you need.
  - h. Go back and select the forms you need to print, save and modify.

If you do not have a personal attorney you may want to consider contacting the Erie County Bar Association to get a consultation or reference. Call 419-627-2009.

If you cannot afford an attorney you may want to contact Legal Services of Northern Ohio, 109 W. Water St., Sandusky, OH. Call 1-888-534-1432 for Public Request Number. They may provide you with an information packet for custody-type actions.

Date: 08/20/2010

#### Local Rules of Court - Erie County Court of Common Pleas - Domestic Relations Division

- 4. Can be purchased from the Clerk of Courts for \$15.00
- 5. Can be found at the Sandusky Public Library located just to the south of the Courthouse (across the street).
- 6. Can be found on line as follows:
  - a. <u>www.erie-county-ohio.net</u> (Note: Mid October website will change to <u>www.eriecounty.oh.gov</u>. Currently both sites contain the same information.)
  - b. Look on the left side and select "Printable Forms"
  - c. On the 4th line select "Common Pleas Court Forms"
  - d. Near the top select "Domestic Relations"
  - e. Click on the "down arrow"
  - f. Select "Local Rules of Court"
  - g. Read or print. Write down what forms you need.
  - h. Go back and select the forms you need to print, save and modify.

If you do not have a personal attorney you may want to consider contacting the Erie County Bar Association to get a consultation or reference. Call 419-627-2009.

If you cannot afford an attorney you may want to contact Legal Services of Northern Ohio, 109 W. Water St., Sandusky, OH. Call 1-888-534-1432 for Public Request Number. They may provide you with an information packet for custody-type actions.

Date: 08/20/2010